

9730 Caves Road, Hamelin Bay Extractive Industry Development Application

August 2024 | 24-132





9730 Caves Road, Hamelin Bay Extractive Industry Development Application

We acknowledge the Whadjuk people of the Noongar nation as traditional owners of the land on which we live and work.

We acknowledge and respect their enduring culture, their contribution to the life of this city, and Elders, past and present.

Document ID: /Volumes/Graphics/2024/24-132 - Hamelin Bay, Lot 22 (9730) Caves Road/01 InDesign Report/01 Draft/00 InDesign/24-132 9730 Caves Rd Hamelin Bay EIL DA Folder/24-132 9730 Caves Rd Hamelin Bay EIL DA F 240903.indd

lssue	Date	Status	Prepared by	Approved by	Graphics	File
1	30.08.24	Draft	Campbell Green	Daniel Lewis	СВ	D1
2	03.09.24	Draft	Campbell Green	Daniel Lewis	MS	F

This report has been prepared for the exclusive use of the Client, in accordance with the agreement between the Client and Element Advisory Pty Ltd (**Element Advisory**) ('Agreement').

Element Advisory accepts no liability or responsibility whatsoever in respect of any use of or reliance upon this report by any person who is not a party to the Agreement or an intended recipient.

In particular, it should be noted that this report is a qualitative assessment only, based on the scope and timing of services defined by the Client and is based on information supplied by the Client and its agents.

Element Advisory cannot be held accountable for information supplied by others and relied upon by Element Advisory.

Copyright and any other Intellectual Property arising from the report and the provision of the services in accordance with the Agreement belongs exclusively to **Element Advisory** unless otherwise agreed and may not be reproduced or disclosed to any person other than the Client without the express written authority of **Element Advisory**.

Element Advisory Pty Ltd | Whadjuk Country, L18, 191 St Georges Tce, Perth WA 6000 | www.elementadvisory.com.au

© Element Advisory



Contents

1. Development Application Details	1	
2. Consultant List	3	
3. Introduction	5	
4. Subject Site	7	
5. Proposed Development	9	
6. Orderly and Proper Planning	17	
7. Conclusion	19	
Appendix A – Certificate of Title	21	
Appendix B – Planning Assessment	23	
Appendix C – Development Plans		
Appendix D – Acoustic Assessment		
Appendix E – Traffic Impact Statement	45	
Appendix F – Environmental Management Plan	47	
Appendix G – Groundwater Monitoring Report	49	
Appendix H – Visual Impact Assessment		
Appendix I – Soil Data Analysis	53	







1. Development Application Details

1.1 Development Application Details

Proposed development	Industry – Extractive
Applicant	Element Advisory, on behalf of McDougall Quarries Pty Ltd
Landowner	Joe Fish Pty Ltd
Type of approval sought	Development Application to be determined by the Joint Development Assessment Panel (DAP Form 1)
Subject site	Lot 22 (No. 9730) Caves Road, Hamelin Bay
Real property address	9730 Caves Road, Hamelin Bay
Proposed Extraction Area	14 ha (subject to survey)
Estimated Development value	\$3,500,000 (excl. GST)

1.2 Planning Framework Details

Local Government Area	Shire of Augusta – Margaret River		
Local Planning Scheme	Shire of Augusta – Margaret River Local Planning Scheme No. 1		
Land Use Permissibility	General Agriculture – (A) use		
Aboriginal and/or Local Heritage Considerations	N/A		
Environmental Considerations	 Scattered Native Vegetation on perimeter of site, predominantly cleared of native vegetation Significant undulating topography 		
Relevant State Planning Policy(s), Development Control Policy(s), Position Statements and/or Planning Bulletins	 SPP 2.4 Basic Raw Materials SPP 3.7 Planning in Bushfire Prone Areas Statement of Planning Policy 6.1- Leeuwin-Naturaliste Ridge Policy EPA Separation Distances between Industrial and Sensitive Land Uses (GS3) 		
Local Planning Policies	• Shire of Augusta Margaret-River Local Planning Policy 3 – Extractive Industries		
Local Law	Shire of Augusta Margaret River Extractive Industries Local Law 2014		



9730 Caves Road, Hamelin Bay Extractive Industry Development Application



2. Consultant List

This development application has been prepared by Element Advisory on behalf of McDougall Quarries Pty Ltd with input from the following specialist consultants:

RECEIVED By Shire of Augusta Margaret River

Discipline	Consultant
Planning Consultant	Element Advisory
Environmental Consultant	Accendo Australia
Traffic Engineer	Ptg Consulting
Acoustic Consultant	Herring Storer Acoustics
Hydrology	WML Consulting Engineers
Soil Evaluation	Agrifood Technology





3. Introduction

This Development Application (DA) has been prepared by Element Advisory on behalf of McDougall Quarries for an Extractive Industry over Lot 22 (No. 9730) Caves Road, Hamelin Bay (the subject site).

The subject site is 118.837 Ha and is vacant, abutting the Hamelin Ridge rural-residential estate to the north and the National Park west and southwest. To the east, the subject site is bound by Caves Road and rural properties on the east of Caves Road. The subject site has an existing aerial powerline passing through the site on the eastern side.

The purpose of this DA is to seek approval from the Regional Development Assessment Panel (DAP) to allow lime sand and limestone extraction on the subject site to a maximum depth of 30m AHD. The proposed development is estimated to yield approximately 1,314,489m³ of raw material for use in surrounding agricultural and land development projects which will provide the region with a locally sourced basic raw material.

This report provides an overview of the subject site and the proposed development, as well as a detailed assessment against the relevant planning requirements and an examination of the planning merits of the proposal.

This report is accompanied by the following detailed technical reports, assessments and plans:

- Appendix A Certificate of Title
- Appendix B Planning Assessment
- Appendix C Development Plans
- Appendix D Acoustic Assessment
- Appendix E Traffic Impact Statement
- Appendix F Environmental Management Plan
- Appendix G Groundwater Monitoring Report
- Appendix H Visual Impact Analysis
- Appendix I Soil Data Analysis







RECEIVED

4. Subject Site

4.1 Property Description, Ownership and Locality

The subject site is located within the Shire of Augusta-Margaret River local government area (Shire), approximately 12km north-west of the Augusta Town Centre. The proposed extraction area totals 13.995ha as outlined within the development plans.

Refer to Appendix C - Development Plans.

The subject site contains a single habitable dwelling, as well as a low voltage above ground power line traversing the subject site from south the north.

The subject site directly fronts on to Caves Road to the east, and Cosy Corner Road to the south. The Hamelin Ridge estate is located north of the development proposal.

The property details are provided within Table 1 below with a copy of the Certificate of Title attached at Appendix A.

Table 1. Certificate of Title Particulars

LOT NO.	LANDOWNER	AREA	VOL.	FOLIO	PLAN NO.
22	Joe Fish Pty Ltd	118.837 ha	2113	44	P022155

4.2 Heritage & Environmental Considerations

4.2.1 Existing Site Topography and Soils

The topography is characterised by dispersed hilltops. The subject site has a high-point in the south-eastern corner of the property exceeding 60m AHD. The eastern portion of the property is generally undulating between 45m AHD and 35m AHD with small peaks dispersed throughout. The western portion sits at the bottom of a large slope at a height of 30m AHD, lying at the low point of the valley which slopes up again on properties neighbouring to the west.

A site feature survey is provided within the development plans and laboratory soil testing conducted by Agrifood Technical is attached at Appendix I.

Refer to Appendix C – Development Plans.

Refer to Appendix I – Soil Data Analysis.

4.2.2 Groundwater

Groundwater levels identified onsite were recorded following the installation of 8 monitoring bores onsite in July 2024, by WML and the data correlated to the data used for the LWMS for Hamelin Ridge Estate to produce the predicted maximum groundwater contours outlined in the Groundwater Technical Note and Development Plans.

All proposed operations will always maintain a 2m separation to groundwater, with the highest groundwater level estimated at 28m AHD.

Refer to the Environmental Management Plan at Appendix F.

Refer to the Groundwater Monitoring Report at Appendix G.

4.2.3 Acid Sulphate Soils (ASS)

Department of Water and Environmental Regulation (DWER) Acid Sulphate Soil (ASS) risk mapping for the Swan Coastal Plain demonstrates that the subject site is at no risk of interception of ASS.

Refer to the Environmental Management Plan at Appendix F.





Figure 2. WML Estimated Maximum Groundwater Level (MGL) Contours

4.2.4 Wetlands

No geomorphic wetlands are present within the subject site.

4.2.5 Native Vegetation

The subject site features scattered native vegetation in the western portion of the property while the extraction area includes only a number of individual trees totalling an area less than 0.1 ha and in a completely degraded condition. We do not consider the vegetation to provide substantial environmental value to Western Ring Tail Possums due to their isolated nature and separation to surrounding vegetation.

A native vegetation clearing permit will likely be required from the Department of Water and Environmental Regulation (DWER) to assess the environmental value of the identified native vegetation. A clearing permit is to be lodged with DWER following the lodgement of this development application.

4.2.6 Heritage

A search using the Department of Planning, Lands and Heritage (DPLH) mapping system indicates that there are no places with Aboriginal Cultural Heritage significance on the subject site.

Furthermore, the Heritage Council's State Heritage Register and the City's heritage records indicate there are no sites or places of State or Local heritage significance that will be impacted by the proposed development.

5. Proposed Development

5.1 Development Details

5.1.1 Overview

The proposal is for lime sand and limestone extraction restricted to 14Ha of the subject site. Extraction is to occur over 7 sequential stages, with each stage to comprise of an area less than 2Ha open to extraction at any given time.

Extraction is to be completed by BCP Group, with haulage proposed to use 27.5m trucks on the road network identified in the haulage route defined below. The haulage route allows for efficient regional connection with Caves Road, directly accessed via the proposed crossover.

Extraction is proposed to commence within stage 1 and progressively quarry north, with all operations concealed behind a large working extraction face. Extraction is not to go below a minimum pit floor level of 30m AHD, ensuring a 2m separation to groundwater is always maintained. The Development proposal is summarised in **Table 2** below:

Development Details:	
Subject Site Area	118.837 Ha
Requested Approval Timeframe	10 years
Area of Vegetation Clearing	0.1ha Native Vegetation (Completely Degraded)
Basic Raw Material	Lime Sand & Lime Stone
Lot Boundary Setbacks	Minimum 60m (Caves Road boundary)
	Minimum 20m (Cosy Corner Road boundary)
	Minimum 415m (northern boundary)
Minimum Separation Distance to Sensitive Land Use	400m
Extractive Industry License Area (%)	13.995ha (11.77%)
Rehabilitation Area	100 % of Extraction Area
Rehabilitation Typology	Pasture
Extraction Method	Front-end loader, D9 Dozer, Excavator, Screen & Crusher
Batter Slopes (Vertical: Horizontal)	1:4
No. of Stages	7
Proposed Extraction Yield	1,314,489m3
Annual Extraction Rate (Estimate)	Approx. 131,448.9m3 per annum
Maximum Depth of Extraction	30m AHD
Proposed Haulage Vehicle Movements	Maximum of 15 trucks per day (dependent on market demand)
	Total of 30 movements per day.
RAV Network	RAV 4.1
Haulage Route	Caves Road to Bussell Highway
Hours of Operation	Mon-Fri: 7:00am to 5:00pm
	Sat: 7:00am to 1:00pm
	No works are to occur on Sundays or Public Holidays.

Table 2. Development Summary



It is anticipated that all material may be extracted within 10 years, with rehabilitation to be completed following the completion of the final 2ha stage.

Rehabilitation and ongoing monitoring and maintenance of the rehabilitation area to a self-sustaining status will require maintenance over a 1 year period following the completion of works onsite.

The following activities are expected as part of the on-going operation of the site:

- Removal and Stockpiling of Topsoil the top 100mm of topsoil from the active extraction stage is to be removed and stockpiled. Stockpiles are to be located where convenient within each extraction stage for operations with a batter no greater than 1:3 to ensure minimal erosion of the stockpile during winter periods and a height no greater than 2m for reduced wind erosion.
- Material excavation active excavation of the resource from the working face within each stage and loading of trucks for haulage offsite.
- Screening and crushing Screening of excavated material may be required dependent upon the particle size of
 material and market demand for material permeability. Should screening be undertaken onsite, a mobile screen is
 to be located within centre of the stage and operated in accordance with the noise management plan attached at
 Appendix D. Larger pieces of material are to be adequately crushed prior to screening. Material is to be loaded into
 the screen by front-end loader and/or excavator prior to loading trucks for haulage.
- Final contouring and topsoil respread A combination of equipment may be used to undertake spreading and earthworks including a tracked bobcat, excavator and front end loader. Final contours are to reflect the Post Extraction Contour Plan.
- Site rehabilitation Rehabilitation is to be completed in stages, following each stage of extraction. Rehabilitation of the subject site will ensure a pasture grass cover is established for long term dust suppression purposes.

5.1.2 Stages of Excavation

Extraction is to progress gradually in approximately 7 sequential stages moving from the western boundary of stage 1 before progressing north. This sequence allows for all operations to be screened behind a large working face.

5.1.3 Depth of Extraction

The maximum depth of extraction is to be limited to 30m AHD, ensuring a 2m separation to groundwater is always maintained during excavation. Detailed post extraction contours are provided within the development plans attached at **Appendix C.**

It is the operator's responsibility to not exceed this depth of extraction to prevent any risk of exposing groundwater within the site.



5.1.4 Site Access and Movement

Site access and haulage route is set out within Figure 3. Caves Road is identified as a RAV network road, capable of accommodating up to 27.5m B-Double Trucks. All proposed roads to be used for haulage are able to accommodate 27.5m RAV trucks as proposed.

The preferred haulage route will utilise a new crossover to Caves Road, where RAV trucks will travel to Bussell Highway for regional access.



Figure 3. Site Aerial and Proposed Haulage Route



5.1.5 Hours of operation

The proposed hours of operation are:

- 7:00am to 5:00pm Monday to Friday.
- 7:00am to 1:00pm on Saturdays.
- No works are to occur on Sundays or Public Holidays.

5.1.6 Water Supply for Dust Suppression

It is anticipated that during the months of October to March, approximately 30KL (two full water carts) will be required for dust suppression per day during operations. The operator is required to maintain a water cart onsite, with sourcing of water from a licenced source either onsite or nearby. Should an onsite source be required, following DA approval, a water license application is required to be lodged with DWER for determination.

5.2 Noise Management

An acoustic report was prepared by Herring Storer to model the predicted noise impacts of the development with a copy of the report included at **Appendix D**.

Due to the proposed day-time operating hours, the applicable acoustic criteria for this assessment is the assigned L_{A10} day period noise level of 45 dB(A). The acoustic report concludes that, subject to the management measures specified for specific plant, the proposed operations are compliant with the *Environmental Protection (Noise) Regulations 1997* and do not adversely impact on the nearest sensitive receptors.



Figure 4. Modelled Acoustic Contours (worst case scenario – Stage 6)

Noise management measures required onsite include:

- The use of a 3m high temporary berm surrounding the crusher equipment if operating on the pit surface;
- The D9 dozer may only operate at surface within the western portion of stages 1-9 as shown, unless it is located behind a 5m excavation face at which stage it may operate within the extent of each stage; and
- All plant may operate without any noise management at a depth of 5m below the natural ground level as the quarry face acts as an acoustic bund.

The Noise Management Plan, prepared by Accendo, provides further details on the management of noise emissions onsite.

Refer to Appendix F – Environmental Management Plan



5.3 Traffic and Transport

A Traffic Impact Statement (TIS) has been prepared by PTG in support of the proposed haulage operations onsite.

The TIS concludes that proposed development is estimated to generate up to 38 daily vehicle (15 RAV trucks per day) movements which translate to approximately 1.5 trucks entering and exiting the site during peak operation. These volumes are considered only to influence the existing road network during infrequent peak haulage campaigns. The vehicles used are to be 27.5m RAV 4 vehicles.

The TIS recommends the location of the proposed crossover as shown on the Excavation Works Plan to maximise sight line distances to the Cosy Corner Road intersection and Caves Road to the north.

The potential impacts on the road network due to the proposed development are considered acceptable.

Refer to Appendix E – Traffic Impact Statement

5.4 Weed and Dieback Management

Weed management for the proposed development is addressed in Section 4.4 of the Rehabilitation Management Plan prepared by Accendo. The Weed management plan includes the following strategies to mitigate against the spread of weeds, where required:

- Assess potential for weeds within surface material prior to removal of topsoil and separate weed affected topsoil for treatment or disposal;
- Storage of weedy topsoil separately to be cleaned;
- All stockpiled topsoil is stored in the general vicinity of its origin;
- Cleaning of earthmoving machinery prior to entry and exit of the subject site;
- No soil shall be brought to the subject site apart from that used for rehabilitation;
- Plants used in rehabilitation are to be free from weeds;
- Internal access within subject site is controlled to reduce weed spread via vehicles;
- Chemical spray to kill weeds is used where deemed to be required, and;
- Monitoring of objectives and constant reporting to required to ensure above objectives are met.

Dieback management measures are detailed under Section 5.3 of the Environmental Management Plan. Given there is limited native vegetation (>0.1Ha) within the subject site, dieback indicator species are largely absent and therefore it is not possible to detect whether dieback is present or absent. On this basis, it is reasonable to classify the subject site as 'uninterpretable', denoting that a precautionary management approach should be adopted.

The following precautionary measures are applied to minimise risk of dieback entry to the subject site:

- Training provided to staff to educate on the specific requirements of dieback management;
- Fencing and lockable gates will be maintained and used to control unauthorised access to the excavation area.
- As far as reasonable and practicable haulage vehicles are to be cleaned of all loose external soil and plant material prior to entry and exit from the extraction area.
- Access to the subject site during operation will be restricted to the proposed roads. No other access points should be established. The access location and vehicle inspection point should be clearly sign posted.
- The extraction area will be managed to avoid ponding of surface water where vehicle access is required.
- Trucks will be loaded and covered to ensure there is no spillage of material during transport.

Refer to Appendix F – Environmental Management Plan

5.5 Dust Management

Dust generated onsite by operations is to be managed in accordance with the Dust Management Plan (DMP) prepared by Accendo Australia as part of the Environmental Management Plan attached at Appendix F.

As outlined within the DMP, dust emissions during the extraction process will be managed through the use of a water cart onsite to dampen material before and during extraction. This measure will reduce visible dust and minimise dust created during excavations.

The DMP also incorporates a complaints register, ensuring the DMP is considered a live management plan and may be continually updated to ensure dust is managed appropriately onsite.



The DMP includes precautions to ensure dust generation does not cause adverse amenity impacts, this includes the termination of works at the notice of visible dust crossing the site boundary, particularly towards Caves Road or neighbouring properties.

Refer to Appendix F - Environmental Management Plan

5.6 Rehabilitation

During operations, quarrying and rehabilitation of the extraction area will be undertaken progressively. Following quarrying of each stage, rehabilitation will be undertaken. Rehabilitation of each stage is to be in the form of stabilising pasture.

Upon completion of each cell, the following broad completion criteria will be achieved:

- A self-sustaining cover of pasture;
- Weed levels that are not likely to impact on the viability of the reconstructed soils; and
- A safe and stable landform suitable for the proposed future land use which will be productive, grazing pasturelands.

Refer to Appendix F – Environmental Management Plan

5.7 Stormwater Management

Potential impacts associated with sedimentation and erosion from stormwater runoff during the operation of the quarry will be minimised by ensuring the pit floor has an area of 840m2 or less, bunded to allow for the potential capture of stormwater from within each stage.

Due to the size of the subject site, no offsite stormwater issues are anticipated to by this development with the likelihood and residual risk considered Low.

Refer to Appendix F - Environmental Management Plan

5.8 Onsite Vehicle Maintenance

All machinery onsite are to be serviced by an authorised service vehicle which is to arrive onsite as required. Each service and maintenance vehicle will to contain a hydrocarbon spill kit to prevent any potential contamination of the site.

All major servicing is to occur offsite with machinery transported offsite.

No hydrocarbons are to be stored onsite at any time, with the refuelling of machines to occur from an authorised service vehicle which is to attend site as required.

Refer to Appendix F – Environmental Management Plan

5.9 Visual Impact Analysis and Management

Element Advisory has prepared a Visual Impact Analysis to determine the potential of the development proposal to impact on the visual amenity of the locality as viewed from the surrounding road network.

Refer to Appendix H – Visual Impact Assessment

Photos were taken around the perimeter of the subject site and digitally mapped to illustrate the potential visual impact of the development proposal. Three categories were applied to each photo to provide guidance on the potential for how the extraction area may be viewed from the surrounding road network. These site photos have been graphically presented in the Visual Impact Analysis.

Due to operations proposed to commence within stage 1 and only progress north at a floor of 30m AHD, no operations are to be seen from any photo location. Stage 1 in particular is naturally screened to Cosey Corner Road (see images 26-29).

Progressively over time, various view angles will observe the progressive removal of the critical resource onsite before the stage returns to pasture. Operations will be screened, but the change in topography may be evident over time. For this reason, at locations identified as having a "partially visible" or "visible" category, a 5m wide landscape corridor is proposed to break up the view corridor with native vegetation. The 5m wide landscape corridor is anticipated to be conditioned to be planted at the commencement of operations within stage 1.

Critical to this proposal is its time limited nature and it's progressive rehabilitation to pasture following extraction. Therefore, as the quarry face progresses north, pasture rehabilitation will progressively establish.

Notably, the undulating nature of the property north of the quarry partially screens any potential views across the landscape due to the existing smaller hills.





Figure 5. Viewing Diagram





Figure 6. Vegetation Screening Plan

Through the appropriate planting of screening vegetation within the proposed 5m corridor, the potential visual amenity impacts associated with temporary operations may be screened, and the ecological connectivity of the site enhanced to support the western ring tail possum movements across the site.

Following extraction, the existing topography is to reflect the contours shown on the post extraction plan and returned to pasture for grazing.

Refer to Appendix H – Visual Impact Assessment



6. Orderly and Proper Planning

In addition to the assessment and justification provided in the planning assessment at **Appendix B**, the principles of orderly and proper planning require that new development is consistent with the planning vision and strategic direction for the locality.

The key matters relating to orderly and proper planning are outlined as follows:

- The application seeks approval for an Extractive Industry, a discretionary land use subject to public advertising within the General Agriculture Zone pursuant to Section 4.3 of The Shire's Local Planning Scheme No. 1. A land use, capable of approval;
- The proposed use is a temporary, time limited land use. Once the resources is extracted, operations cease and the land is rehabilitated to pasture.
- The extraction of Lime sand and Limestone will supply the region with a market competitive locally sourced basic raw material for use in the agricultural, civil and land development sectors. This development will service a significant market demand for Basic Raw Materials, particularly in the lower southwest;
- The proposed quarry represents the only limestone quarry within the Shire of Augusta-Margaret River, providing the agriculture and land development industries within the shire a local limestone supply, resulting in reduced haulage costs;
- The proposed development seeks to extract sand to a depth no lower than 30m AHD, ensuring a 2m buffer is maintained to groundwater. The batter slopes for the final post-extraction contours are to be constructed to a slope of 1:4 and may be appropriately rehabilitated to pasture.
- The proposed extraction area maintains a 60m setback to Caves Road in accordance with LPS1 to protect the visual amenity of a key tourist route;
- The proposal will not impact on the amenity of surrounding rural and residential land uses through the progressive staging of operations, and a 5m screening corridor planted with native species to support WRP connectivity onsite;
- The proposal uses a haulage route which has the capacity to accommodate all haulage vehicles and provides efficient regional access to market;
- The proposed development is capable of managing dust within the site without any offsite amenity impacts on the locality;
- The proposed development is appropriately separated from nearest sensitive land uses to ensure potential noise impacts by plant and operations may be managed in accordance with the Noise Regulations 1997; and
- Following extraction, each stage is to be progressively rehabilitated in the manner set out within the Environmental Management Plan to pasture. The rehabilitation process is to be audited and to the Shire's satisfaction to ensure the productive use of the land for agricultural purposes is not jeopardised.

In consideration of the above merits of the proposal, the proposed development is considered to be consistent with the principles of orderly and proper planning and therefore may be conditionally supported by the RJDAP on its planning merit.



9730 Caves Road, Hamelin Bay Extractive Industry Development Application



7. Conclusion

This report has been prepared by Element Advisory, on behalf of McDougall Quarries for an Extractive Industry at Lot 22 (No. 9730) Caves Road, Hamelin Bay (the "subject site"). The development proposal seeks approval to extract lime sand and limestone from the subject site within 7 stages before being rehabilitated to pasture for future agricultural use of the subject site. The development proposal will ensure a 5m native vegetation corridor is established along Caves Road and the northern boundary to enhance the environmental connectivity of the site for Western Ring Tail Possums and enhance the visual amenity of the locality.

This report sets out the development approval framework, project area description, proposed development and planning framework applicable to the proposal. The planning assessment demonstrates that the proposed development will remain compliant with the strategic intent for the area following extraction and is consistent with the requirements and standards in the applicable statutory planning framework.

This proposal provides a development proposal which is sequential in nature and which enables the supply Lime sand and Limestone, a critical basic raw material to meet current and projected demand within the Southwest for agricultural, civil and land development purposes.

The proposal is therefore consistent with the principles of orderly and proper planning and can be appropriately managed within a 10-year time limited period, as outlined within this report.

It is respectfully requested that the Shire support and recommend approval of the proposed development to the RJDAP, subject to appropriate conditions reflective of proposed extractive operations.







Appendix A – Certificate of Title







TITLE NUMBER Volume Folio 2113 **44**

WESTERN

AUSTRALIA

RECORD OF	CERTIFICA	ATE OF	TITLE

UNDER THE TRANSFER OF LAND ACT 1893

The person described in the first schedule is the registered proprietor of an estate in fee simple in the land described below subject to the reservations, conditions and depth limit contained in the original grant (if a grant issued) and to the limitations, interests, encumbrances and notifications shown in the second schedule.

BGRobert

REGISTRAR OF TITLES

LOT 22 ON PLAN 22155

LAND DESCRIPTION:

REGISTERED PROPRIETOR: (FIRST SCHEDULE)

JOE FISH PTY LTD OF 89 ANZAC ROAD MOUNT HAWTHORN WA 6016

(T N652127) REGISTERED 20/6/2017

LIMITATIONS, INTERESTS, ENCUMBRANCES AND NOTIFICATIONS: (SECOND SCHEDULE)

A current search of the sketch of the land should be obtained where detail of position, dimensions or area of the lot is required. Warning: Lot as described in the land description may be a lot or location.

STATEMENTS:

The statements set out below are not intended to be nor should they be relied on as substitutes for inspection of the land and the relevant documents or for local government, legal, surveying or other professional advice.

SKETCH OF LAND: PREVIOUS TITLE: PROPERTY STREET ADDRESS: LOCAL GOVERNMENT AUTHORITY: 2113-44 (22/P22155) 2113-42 9730 CAVES RD, HAMELIN BAY. SHIRE OF AUGUSTA MARGARET RIVER





9730 Caves Road, Hamelin Bay Extractive Industry Development Application

Appendix B – Planning Assessment

Shire of Augusta Margaret-River Local Planning Strategy 2022

The Shire's 2022 Local Planning Strategy (Strategy) provides strategic guidance towards the future development and sustainability of the Shire. The Strategy includes various themes, summarised below:

- 1. Population and Housing
- 2. Utilities and Assets
- 3. Environment and Resilience
- 4. Agriculture and Food Heritage, Character and Design
- 5. Commerce and Tourism
- 6. Transportation

Under the 'Commerce and Tourism' strategic theme, the strategy specifically mentions the extraction of Basic Raw Materials (BRM), stating:

"Basic raw materials (BRM) include sand, limestone, gravel, clay, gypsum and other construction and road building materials. The materials are finite and as local supply becomes more constrained their cost will increase thereby putting upward pressure on the cost of housing....

...The Shire will work cooperatively with the WAPC to ensure that where extraction opportunities are identified, appropriate controls are put in place to prioritise extraction from areas where there is a low risk of environmental degradation and social or amenity impact."

In accordance with the intent of the strategy theme of Commerce and Tourism, this development application proposes to extract lime sand and limestone, a regionally significant resource in its size, to be used in urban development and infrastructure projects. The location of the development proposal is designed in such a was as to minimise potential social or amenity impacts on surrounding sensitive land uses and allows for the progressive development of a native vegetation screen to enhance WRP connectivity onsite.

The provision of this resource will assist in satisfying BRM demand and directly influence the current costs experienced in the agricultural and land development sectors due to the required haulage distances to the nearest resource.

The Strategy also seeks to address the visual management of sites located within 600m of Caves Road. The development proposal is located within the 300m corridor of Caves road and is identified by the Strategy at Appendix 2 as having rural landscape significance as outlined within Figure 7 below. The priority of the strategy is to maintain the Rural significance of the landscape.





Figure 7. Local Planning Strategy Visual Management Corridors

The rural significance of the landscape is identified from the intersection of Caves Road to Cosey Corner Road with the majority of this section of caves road lined with native vegetation (refer to Visual Impact Assessment at **Appendix H**)

To promote the ecological connectivity of vegetation along caves road to be consistent, and to screen proposed development operations while temporarily operational, a 5m corridor is identified to enhance the visual character along Caves Road.

Shire of Augusta Margaret-River Local Planning Scheme No. 1

Zoning and Land Use Permissibility

The subject site is zoned "General Agriculture" under the Shire of Augusta-Margaret River Local Planning Scheme No. 1 (LPS.1).



Figure 8. Local Planning Scheme No. 1 Zoning

An 'Industry – Extractive' land use is defined under LPS.1 as:

means an industry which involves the extraction, quarrying or removal of sand, gravel, clay, hard rock, stone or similar material from the land and includes the treatment and storage of those materials, or the manufacture of products from those materials on, or adjacent to, the land from which the materials are extracted, but does not include industry - mining;



As the proposed development seeks approval for the extraction of limestone, the 'Industry-Extractive' land use definition is deemed the most appropriate land use. The application does not propose any manufacturing activities onsite.

Within the General Agriculture Zone under LPS1, Industry-Extractive is considered an 'A' use. Clause 4.3.2 of LPS1 defines the following interpretation of 'A' uses:

"means that the use is not permitted unless the local government has exercised its discretion by granting development approval after giving special notice in accordance with clause 64 of the Deemed Provisions"

Therefore, the proposed development is capable of approval by the Shire, subject to a period of public advertising.

Setbacks

Schedule 9 of LPS1 stipulates setback requirements for development in each zone. For the General Agriculture Zone, development is normally required to be setback a minimum of 30m from the primary street setback. When the development abuts Highways, Main Roads or Travel Route Corridors, a greater minimum setback of 60m is required.

The proposed development proposes a minimum setback of 60m to the primary lot boundary on Caves Road, 20m to Cosy Corner Road, 733m to the western lot boundary and 415m to the northern lot boundary This is compliant with Schedule 9 of LPS1 and allows for greater protection of visual amenity.

In addition to meeting the minimum setback for development adjacent to Caves Road, the proposed development will be screened from abutting roads through the planting of screening vegetation to assist in enhancing the existing character of caves road.

Draft Shire of Augusta Margaret-River Local Planning Scheme No. 2

Zoning and Land Use Permissibility

The Shire is currently in the process of reviewing and preparing a new local planning scheme (LPS2). As the scheme was advertised in early 2024, it is considered seriously entertained.

Under the draft LPS2, the subject site is to be zoned 'Rural'.

Under the 'Rural' zone, the 'Industry-Extractive' land use is still considered an 'A' use. This has the same meaning as the land use classification in LPS1.

Therefore, it is considered that the proposed development will be capable of approval considering the future land use permissibility provisions relevant to the subject site and the proposed development is consistent with the future planning of the Shire.

Landscape Protection

Clause 55 of the draft LPS2 details the scheme requirements for the protection of landscape quality and visual amenity within the Shire. Clause 55 lists several criteria to be addressed when proposing development in areas of natural landscape significance. The table below summarises the criteria under Clause 55 of the draft LPS2 and provides responses to each criteria.

Table 3. Clause 55 Landscape Protection Criteria Assessment

Clause 55 Landscape Protection Criteria	Applicant Response
(1) Development in areas with landscape qualities of 'natural landscape significance', as identified by the Local Planning Strategy, shall maintain the existing natural aesthetic. The local government may require landscaping utilising plant species endemic to the area to screen development from viewing locations, including visual management 'corridors' identified by the Local Planning Strategy. Public recreation or safety facilities may be allowed to be seen in the foreground if necessary.	Extensive planting within a 5m corridor is proposed along Caves Road to assist in the screening of the extractive industry development as viewed by the road and to provide ecological connectivity across the site for WRP's.
(2) The removal of vegetation which contributes to the landscape qualities of natural significance is prohibited.	Removal of significant vegetation located in significant view corridors is not proposed
(3) Where development may impact upon areas having landscape qualities of 'rural landscape significance', as identified by the Local Planning Strategy, development is to be	The proposed extractive industry boundary is setback 60m from Caves Road in accordance with LPS1 to protect visual amenity.
sufficiently setback from boundaries to maintain existing open landscape and views from Visual Management 'Corridors'.	The proposed land use is temporary in nature and following extraction will be rehabilitated to pasture.



Clause 55 Landscape Protection Criteria	Applicant Response	
(4) Development subject to visual management controls identified in the Local Planning Strategy must not use colours with a solar absorbtance rating less than or equal to 0.4. The use of colours with a solar absorbtance rating less than or equal to 0.4 may be considered for roofs where it can be demonstrated that this will have a negligible visual impact off site.	The development does not propose any permeant structures but is temporary in nature. Following rehabilitation to pasture, no disturbance of the landscape is to be visible.	
(5) Within Visual Management 'Areas' as defined by the Local Planning Strategy, the local government will require that	The proposed development is to be temporary in nature and will progressively extract sand from stage 1 to 6.	
development be located on lower contours, avoid 'skylining'. Vegetated backdrops may be required to be planted where they will lessen visual impact.	Over time, the hill within the south eastern corner will progressively change, until the end landform reflects the contours shown on the Post Extraction plan.	
 (6) Development upon 'Visually Sensitive Sites' as identified by the Local Planning Strategy must be designed to minimise visual impacts by employing mitigating controls such as: Screen landscaping; Setbacks; Appropriate scale; Low intensity of land uses. 	The subject site is not considered a visually sensitive site as per the Local Planning Strategy	
(7) The Shire may, at its discretion request a Visual Impact Assessment prepared by a suitably qualified person in accordance with the 'Visual Landscape Planning in Western Australia' manual to demonstrate to the satisfaction of the local government that a proposal will not lead to an adverse visual impact.	The proposed development is supported by a visual impact assessment. Refer to Appendix H – Visual Impact Assessment	

Shire of Augusta Margaret-River Local Planning Policy 3 – Extractive Industries

The Shire's Local Planning Policy No.3 – Extractive Industries (LPP3) was adopted by the Council in January of 2023 and guides the appropriate location, management and function of extractive industry proposals in the Shire.

Section 8 of LPP3 provides detailed policy measures under the elements of amenity, environment, buffers, visual impact, transport and compliance. Section 8 of LPP 3 provides a list of Acceptable Development (AD) provisions for each element to be satisfied by the proposal. If the AD provisions cannot be satisfied, the proposal must demonstrate consistency with the corresponding Performance Criteria (PC) of the associated element. The table below conducts an assessment against the AD and PC provisions for each element, where relevant.

able 4. LPP 3 Acceptable Development and Performance	e Criteria Assessment
LPP 3 Acceptable Development / Performance Criteria Provisions	Applicant Comments
Element: Amenity	
AD 1.1.1 Development is located away from sensitive landuses unless appropriate measures can be taken to ameliorate adverse impacts.	The proposed extraction area is located a minimum of 300m from sensitive land uses in accordance with the EPA industrial use buffer guidelines.
	The nearest sensitive landuse is located 400m from the extraction boundary.

Table 4. LPP 3 Acceptable Development and Performance Criteria Assessment

	extraction boundary.	
AD 1.1.2 Hours of operation are limited to 7am to 5pm	Proposed hours of operation are in accordance with AD	
Monday to Friday and 8am to 1pm on Saturdays. No	1.1.2.	\checkmark
operations on Sundays and recognised public holidays.		

Compliant

 \checkmark



LPP 3 Acceptable Development / Performance Criteria Provisions	Applicant Comments	Compliant
AD 1.1.3 Extraction of material occurs from only one site per property at any one time	The proposed extraction will be undertaken sequentially in 7 stages. Only one (1) stage will have extraction occurring at any time. Rehabilitation of each stage will begin immediately after commencing extraction on the following stage.	\checkmark
AD 1.1.4 Sites are filled with clean material only.	Post extraction, the extraction area is to be completely rehabilitated to pasture to the satisfaction of the Shire.	\checkmark
Element: Environment		
AD 1.2.1 Development does not prejudicially effect native flora and fauna; groundwater quality, quantity and use; surface drainage and surface water quality including discharge of sediment and sites of cultural and/or historic significance on the land. Where relevant an extractive industry is to incorporate a wetland buffer and be setback a minimum of 100m from all wetlands.	The proposed Extractive Industry will not result in any adverse impact on environmental aspects of the site. This Development Application is accompanied by a detailed Environmental Management Plan (EMP) which addresses all relevant environmental considerations and includes an audit of the existing environmental values.	\checkmark
	The EMP details how the proposed extractive industry will appropriately protect the natural environment, rehabilitate the site and manage onsite drainage.	
AD 1.2.2 Acid Sulphate Soil Risks Assessment required in areas with soil with a risk of Acid Sulphate Soils as determined in the DWER's Guideline – Identification and investigation of acid sulfate soils and acidic landscapes.	No risk of Acid Sulphate Soils are mapped on the subject site.	\checkmark
AD 1.2.3 Dieback is managed in accordance with Best Practice Guidelines – Management of Phytophthora Dieback in Extractive Industries (Dieback Working Group Inc 2021).	Due to the limited indicator species onsite, the presence of dieback is undetermined Refer to Appendix F - EMP	\checkmark
AD 1.2.4 The site is able to be rehabilitated in a way that is compatible with the long term planning for the site and surrounding area. Rehabilitation is to be undertaken on an ongoing basis for completed cells. Where clearing of native vegetation has occurred, revegetation shall be undertaken in such a way to recreate and restore the native vegetation of the site and enhance environmental linkages within and beyond the site.	Rehabilitation is to be conducted sequentially, following the completion of each stage of extraction. Rehabilitation of the previous stage is to begin and operate concurrently with the extraction of the subsequent stage. Less than 0.1 ha of native vegetation is proposed to be cleared, and a large 5m corridor is proposed to enhance the ecological connectivity onsite for WRP. <i>Refer to Appendix F - EMP</i>	\checkmark
AD 1.2.5 A revegetation plan prepared by a suitably qualified environmental specialist in revegetation techniques and experience specific to Western Australian conditions shall be prepared in accordance with DWER's publication 'A Guide to Preparing Revegetation Plans for Clearing Permits (2018).	The EMP prepared by Accendo includes a revegetation plan. <i>Refer to Appendix F - EMP</i>	√
Element: Buffers		
AD 1.3.1 Quarry of hard rock (including blasting), crushing and screening - requires a buffer distance of 1000m; or	N/A	
AD 1.3.2 Quarry (not hard rock). Processing rock ore etc. by blasting, grinding and milling works – material processed by grinding, milling or separated by sieving, aeration etc requires a buffer distance of 1000m; or	N/A	
AD 1.3.3 Quarry (no blasting) - material processed by grinding, milling or separated by sieving, aeration etc requires a buffer distance of 500m; or	N/A	



LPP 3 Acceptable Development / Performance Criteria Provisions	Applicant Comments	Compliant
AD 1.3.4 Gravel extraction processed by grinding, milling or separated by sieving, aeration etc. – requires a buffer distance of 500m; or	N/A	
AD 1.3.5 Sand and limestone extraction no grinding or milling works - requires a buffer distance of 500m.	The proposed extraction area is separated by 400m to the nearest residence east of Caves Road.	
	Proposed operations can commence within Stage 1 which is greater than 500m from the nearest sensitive receptor.	
	Within the first stage of extraction, operations will cut to 30m AHD, which is a lower elevation than the nearby Hamelin Ridge residential development (40-60m AHD) and the rural residence to the east (35-40m AHD).	\checkmark
	As extraction stages progress north towards each sensitive receptor, the natural barrier caused by the pit face increases.	
	Due to the nature of operations and the distances to the nearest sensitive receptors, all Noise and Dust emissions may be appropriately managed.	
	Refer to Appendix F – EMP	
Element: Visual Impact		
AD 1.4.1 Development is to be visually inevident in the landscape when viewed from major tourist routes.	Extraction activities are to be appropriately setback by over 60m to Caves Road as per the requirements of LPS1. Additionally, all operations are to be visually screened by the extraction face, preventing any view of activities from Caves Road.	\checkmark
	To assist with the visual amenity along caves road, vegetation is proposed to screen the subject site and protect the natural amenity of Caves road.	
AD1.4.2 Outside of major tourist routes, development is to comply with the visual management guidelines of the Council's Local Planning Strategy and State Planning Policy 6.1 – Leeuwin Naturaliste Ridge (if applicable).	Refer to assessment of the Shire's Local Planning Strategy and SPP 6.1 in this report.	\checkmark
AD1.4.3 A vegetative screen of an appropriate width depending on the size and life of the extractive industry	A 5m native vegetation screen is proposed along Caves Road and the northern boundary.	
shall be provided to assist with visual impacts and help mitigate dust impacts. Vegetation should be of substantive size to provide an appropriate screen during the operation of the industry.	It is anticipated that a landscape plan be prepared as a condition of development approval, specifying proposed vegetation species.	\checkmark
AD1.4.4 Noise mitigation bunds or stockpiles are not to be of size or height so as to cause unacceptable visual impact when viewed from neighbouring properties or public roads.	As previously stated, following the extraction of Stage 1, all operations are to be at 30m AHD and due to the cut at the base of the extraction face, all operations are screened from Caves Road.	\checkmark
Element: Transport		
AD1.5.1 Development is located in proximity to heavy haulage routes.	The subject site immediately fronts Caves Road a RAV 4 network.	\checkmark
AD1.5.2 Development which does not utilise school bus routes for haulage purposes.	The portion of Caves Road which interfaces with the subject site is not included on a School Bus Route. No disruption of School Bus Routes is anticipated as a result of this proposal.	\checkmark



LPP 3 Acceptable Development / Performance Criteria Provisions	Applicant Comments	Compliant
AD1.5.3 Development where a road maintenance agreement has been entered into with the Shire prior to operation, or where financial contributions have been made to ensure the upgrading of roads where necessary to improve the standard of access.	N/A. As the site does not travel along a road which is managed by the Shire, no road deterioration cost contributions are applicable.	\checkmark
Element: Compliance		
AD1.6.1 Where approval for extraction is granted, the maximum term shall be a period of not more than 5	The proposed development is seeking an approval timeframe of 10 years due to the volume of material.	
years.	It is anticipated that the Shire may impose a condition requiring an annual audit to be submitted, demonstrating the progress of operations and compliance with development conditions, including the success of rehabilitation onsite.	\checkmark

Statement of Planning Policy 6.1- Leeuwin-Naturaliste Ridge Policy

The subject site is located within the area affected by SPP 6.1 Leeuwin Naturaliste Ridge. Under SPP 6.1, the part of the subject site on which the development is located is in the Travel Corridor Rural Landscape Significance Class and the Plateau Landscape Character Unit.

Please refer to Figure 9 on page 31 and Figure 10 on page 32

The vision for the Leeuwin Naturaliste Ridge SPP area is:

Creative, vital and sustainable communities living in balance with economic development and the unique landscape and environmental values of the Leeuwin-Naturaliste Ridge policy area.


element.



Figure 9. Landscape Class





LEGEND 🖛 🚥 🔹 Policy Area Boundary -- Eastern Line of the Ridge Landscape Character Units Western Coastal Eastern Stopes Plateau Valleys Coastal Plain Coastal Wetlands Scarp Augusta Slopes Geographe Slopes Karri Sub-Unit 1



0 1 2 3 4 5 Kilometres Produced by Cartographic Section, Bunbury Office, Ministry for Planning

Figure 10. Landscape Character Unit



element.

The general policy objectives for SPP 6.1 are listed below:

- 1. Conserve and enhance the special benefits arising from landscape elements that form the fabric of the region.
- 2. Respect and conserve its outstanding natural and cultural heritage and environmental values.
- 3. Cater for population growth consistent with the objectives of the LNRSPP and provide a range of settlement options located to enhance the economic, social and environmental functions, while promoting quality and innovation in urban design and built form
- 4. Protect agricultural land for its economic, landscape, tourism and social values.
- 5. Encourage a mix of compatible land uses while separating conflicting land uses.
- 6. Facilitate a robust, diverse and sustainable economy
- 7. Foster a sense of community and creativity; for the benefit of all residents and visitors and for future generations.

The proposed extractive industry development is consistent with the SPP 6.1 policy objectives for the following reasons:

- Post-extraction, the subject site will be appropriately rehabilitated to pasture, with additional screening vegetation planted;
- Capitalising on the presence of natural basic raw materials allows for the diversification of the economy and use of an essential reginal resource for urban development in a manner which cannot be visually seen from Caves Road; and
- The development will seek to ensure a nature positive outcome onsite, with an enhanced landscaped interface along Caves Road.

In addition to the above general policy objectives, SPP 6.1 also identifies the subject site and extraction area as being the Travel Corridor Rural Landscape Significance Class, with the relevant policy outlined below:

PS 3.6 In areas of Rural Landscape Significance, as identified in Figure 3, development or change of use should protect the rural character of the land.

The proposed extractive industry development gives regard to the above SPP 6.1 policy action through the following:

- The use of the land for agricultural purposes will be protected and sequentially developed following extraction through rehabilitation to pasture. Current agricultural use onsite will remain unchanged during operations.
- The development proposal only seeks to operate within 11% of the subject site, the balance of which will remain grazing land and unchanged.
- The development proposal seeks to enhance the landscape amenity of the locality through planting a native vegetation corridor along caves road to be established and enhance the WRP connectivity onsite.
- The predominant land use and economic contribution of the subject site in perpetuity remains agriculture and viticulture, as proposed extractive industry is a time limited use which will cease following the extraction of material.

Given the above, the proposed extractive industry development will maintain consistency with the strategic intent of SPP 6.1.

State Planning Policy 2.4 - Basic Raw Materials Resource Policy (2021)

State Planning Policy 2.4 – Basic Raw Materials seeks to enable the responsible extraction of Basic Raw Materials (BRM) while ensuring the protection of people and the environment. The application of this Policy provides the foundation for land use planning to address the sustainable management of BRM in Western Australia.

The policy objectives and applicable response are provided within Table 5 below.

Table 5. SPP2.4 Objectives Assessment

SPP2.4 Policy Objective	Proposed Development
Ensure BRM and its regional importance is considered at the earliest stages of the planning process;	The proposal allows for the extraction of basic raw materials from a currently vacant site. Rehabilitation will maintain the potential for future development on the site.
Ensure BRM resources are used efficiently in land use planning and development;	The extraction area includes a deposit of lime sand and limestone, a regionally significant basic raw material. This resource is widely used as an essential component in urban development and civil infrastructure projects.



SPP2.4 Policy Objective	Proposed Development
Identify BRM extraction opportunities through sequential land use without compromising the final intended land use; and	The proposed development site is to be completely rehabilitated to pasture to restore existing natural aesthetics and allow future development in accordance with the General Agricultural Zoning.
Ensure the extraction of BRM avoids, minimises or mitigates any adverse impacts on the community, water resources and biodiversity values.	The proposed extractive industry has demonstrated significant consideration of the subject sites environmental characteristics as shown in the attached EMP.
	The proposal includes significant consideration of community values, ensuring no water resources are affected and visual amenity is preserved.

In addition to the above policy objectives, SPP2.4 also includes associated guidelines (SPP 2.4 Guidelines). Section 4 of the SPP 2.4 Guidelines includes more specific assessment criteria for extractive industry developments. The following table includes an assessment of the proposal against this criteria:

Table 6. SPP2.4 Guidelines Assessment

SPP 2.4 Guidelines Extractive Industries Criteria	Analysis of this Extractive Industry Application
(a) the avoidance or mitigation of conflicts and detrimental effects on existing and future sensitive land uses and agricultural land in the surrounding areas (that is, noise, dust, vibration, blasting and	The proposed extractive industry is to be appropriately separated from surrounding sensitive land uses. A minimum separation distance of 400m is proposed.
vehicular traffic);	Operations can appropriately manage all potential impacts associated with dust and noise to prevent any offsite impacts.
(b) having an effective consultation process with appropriate stakeholder engagement, including advertising as required;	The development application is to be made available for public comment as part of the development application process with due regard given to any submissions made.
(c) prioritisation of proposals within SGS areas aligned with DMIRS geoVIEW.WA mapping in Perth and Peel;	Not applicable to this application.
(d) if the resources is identified as a SGS area and/or local basic raw material demand;	The subject site is not identified as within an SGS area.
(e) the quantity and quality of resource and scale and duration of extraction;	The proposal seeks approval to extract 1,314,489m3 of limestone and lime sand. This is a significant resource for surrounding development projects.
(f) management of finished ground levels for BRM extraction and site rehabilitation to:	The proposed extractive industry will be consistent with SPP 2.4 Guidelines Part 4(f).
 Maintain appropriate horizontal separation between extraction, water supply infrastructure and any other engineering requirements; 	A separation distance to groundwater of 2m from the maximum groundwater level is proposed and is considered sufficient to protect against any potential interception of groundwater.
 Avoid the exposure of groundwater and maintain the required vertical separation distances to groundwater for sequential land use; 	The proposed extraction depth of 30mAHD has been deemed appropriate following groundwater monitoring onsite.
- Protect ground water and surface water quality.	
(g) the site's potential for sequential land use and the ability to rehabilitate the land in a manner compatible with its long-term use identified by the Local Planning Scheme;	The subject site is to be adequately rehabilitated in accordance with the approved EMP. Rehabilitation will restore the subject site to pasture and reinstate cleared native vegetation.
(h) the ability to stage the extraction operations to avoid conflicts with any adjacent land uses;	Staging is proposed in a manner which does not impact surrounding sensitive land uses. Staging is planned to ensure the majority of works are screened by the active pit face.
(i) the effect of the proposed extractive industry on any adjacent agricultural land;	The proposed extractive industry will not impact adjacent agricultural land. The subject site is largely surrounded by conservation areas and interfaces to agricultural land are separated by roads.
(j) the availability and suitability of road access;	The subject site has direct access to Caves Road, a RAV 4 network.



SPP 2.4 Guidelines Extractive Industries Criteria	Analysis of this Extractive Industry Application
(k) the effect of the proposed extractive industry on any native flora and fauna and general landscape values;	The proposed extraction area is within an area already largely cleared of vegetation. The natural vegetation that is cleared will be appropriately rehabilitated within the 5m vegetation corridor where required.
() how all water resources will be protected during BRM extraction including a separation distance to the defined	No water resources are anticipated to be impacted by this proposal.
groundwater level plus other management measures to protect water resources during BRM extraction;	An effective minimum groundwater vertical separation of 2m is proposed. There are no wetlands or major watercourses nearby the extraction site which require protection.
m) potential impacts on fragmentation and connectivity of remnant vegetation;	No fragmentation is anticipated as part of this application. Native vegetation patches are currently disconnected onsite and highly degraded. Native vegetation is to be rehabilitated where required and enable ecological connectivity.
n) any requirements for an environmental offset;	Not required.
 o) sites of cultural and historic significance on and near the land, having regard to how they are likely to be integrated with subsequent land uses; and 	Not applicable to this application.
p) location and stability of excavations, stockpiles and overburden dumps.	Refer to the development plans. No overburden is required to be removed by this development.

Concerning the above, the proposal is deemed to demonstrate compliance with the provisions of SPP 2.4 and the associated SPP 2.4 Guidelines.

Planning and Development (Local Planning Schemes) Regulations 2015

Clause 67(2) of Schedule 2 of the *Planning and Development (Local Planning Schemes) Regulations 2015* (the Deemed Provisions), specifies matters which are to be given due regard when determining applications for approval.

An assessment of the proposal against the relevant matters outlined in Clause 67(2) of the Deemed Provisions has been undertaken. A summary of the assessment is provided below in Table 7.

Table 7.	Clause 67(2) of the Planning	and Development ((Local Planning Schemes)) Regulations 2015 Assessment

Pre	ovision	Applicant Response	
а.	the aims and provisions of this Scheme and any other local planning scheme operating within the Scheme area	Refer to the planning justification provided under the Local Planning Scheme No. 1	\checkmark
b.	the requirements of orderly and proper planning including any proposed local planning scheme or amendment to this Scheme that has been advertised under the Planning and Development (Local Planning Schemes) Regulations 2015 or any other proposed planning instrument that the local government is seriously considering adopting or approving	Refer to the planning justification provided under the Draft Local Planning Scheme No. 2	√
C.	any approved State planning policy	Refer to the assessment listed under State Planning Policy 2.4, 3.7 6.1.	\checkmark
d.	any environmental protection policy approved under the Environmental Protection Act 1986 section 31(d)	N/A	
e.	any policy of the Commission	N/A	
f.	any policy of the State	N/A	
g.	any local planning strategy for this Scheme endorsed by the Commission	Refer to the Local Planning Strategy Assessment above.	\checkmark
h.	any local planning policy for the Scheme area	Refer to the above assessment of Local Planning Policy 3.	\checkmark



Provision		Applicant Response	
i.	any structure plan or local development plan that relates to the development	N/A – No Local Structure Plans or Local Development Plans are applicable to the subject site.	\checkmark
j.	any report of the review of the local planning scheme that has been published under the Planning and Development (Local Planning Schemes) Regulations 2015	N/A	\checkmark
k.	in the case of land reserved under this Scheme, the objectives of the reserve and the additional and permitted uses identified in this Scheme for the reserve	N/A	\checkmark
I.	the built heritage conservation of any place that is of cultural significance	N/A	\checkmark
m.	the effect of the proposal on the cultural heritage significance of the area in which the development is located	Refer to review of indigenous and non-indigenous heritage above. The subject site is not impacted by any recognised sites of indigenous heritage.	\checkmark
n.	the compatibility of the development with its setting, including – i. the compatibility of the development with the	The proposed development site is currently surrounded by largely vacant, rural land. The land to the north of the subject site is the planned Hamelin Ridge Estate, providing limited rural-residential lots.	
	desired future character of its setting; and ii. the relationship of the development to development on adjoining land or on other land in the locality, but not limited to, the likely effect of the height, bulk, scale orientation and appearance of the development.	The land on the east side of Caves Road contains two Rural dwellings.	
		Mitigation measures have been taken to ensure noise, visual amenity, dust and traffic impacts are minimised on these surrounding properties.	\checkmark
		Visual amenity is strictly managed through planting to screen the development from Caves Road. Staging of the extraction has also been planned purposefully to allow the pit face to ensure operations are not seen from Caves Road or Hamelin Ridge Estate.	
		No buildings are proposed and therefore building bulk is not a consideration.	
0.	the amenity of the locality including the following –	Refer to the Environmental Management Plan for responses to these identified considerations.	
	 environmental impacts of the development ii. the character of the locality iii. social impacts of the development 	The proposed operations are screened from surrounding development and will not impact upon the character or amenity of the locality.	<u>_</u>
		No social impacts are anticipated by the development due to the appropriate management of Dust and noise onsite.	v
		Following extraction, the site is to return to agricultural grazing.	
p.	the likely effect of the development on the natural environment or water resources and any means that	The proposed development will maintain a separation to groundwater of 2m.	/
	are proposed to protect or mitigate impacts on the natural environment or the water resource	The development site is appropriately distanced from any surrounding natural water resources.	V
q.	whether adequate provision has been made for the landscaping of the land to which the application relates and whether any trees or other vegetation on	The proposed development requires minimal clearing of native vegetation, with appropriate approvals to be sought where required.	\checkmark
	the land should be preserved	The development proposal includes a 5m planting corridor to enhance ecological connectivity.	
r.	the suitability of the land for the development	The site is suitable for limestone extraction.	
	taking into account the possible risk of flooding, tidal inundation, subsidence, landslip, bush fire, soil	No soil erosion or land degradation is proposed by this development.	\checkmark
	erosion, land degradation or any other risk	No flooding or bush fire risk is anticipated in the proposal.	



element.

Pro	vision	Applicant Response	
S.	the suitability of the land for the development taking into account the possible risk to human health or safety	Refer to the EMP.	\checkmark
t.	the adequacy of –	The site access and haulage routes for vehicles associated	
	i. the proposed means of access and egress from the site; and	with the proposal is deemed appropriate. Refer to the Transport Impact Statement.	\checkmark
	 arrangements for the loading, unloading, manoeuvring and parking of vehicles 		
u.	the amount of traffic likely to be generated by the	Refer to the Transport Impact Statement.	
	development, particularly in relation to the capacity of the road system in the locality and the probable effect on traffic flow and safety	A maximum of 15 trucks are to enter and exit the site per day during peak haulage periods.	\checkmark
V.	the availability and adequacy for the development of the following –	N/A	
	i. public transport services		
	ii. public utility services		
	iii. storage, management and collection of waste		
	 access for pedestrians and cyclists (including end of trip storage, toilet and shower facilities) 		
	v. access by older people and people with disability		
W.	the potential loss of any community service or benefit resulting from the development other than potential loss that may result from economic competition between new and existing businesses	Significant community benefit will be provided through this development by ensuring the Shire of Augusta Margaret River has a locally sourced lime sand and limestone quarry to substantially reduce haulage costs.	
Х.	the history of the site where the development is to be located	N/A	
у.	the impact of the development on the community as a whole notwithstanding the impact of the development on particular individuals	The development will positively impact the community, by providing limestone for future construction purposes within the local area. The subject site will also allow for further local employment within the region.	\checkmark
Z.	any submissions received on the application	Submissions received on the application are to be considered and addressed through the assessment process.	\checkmark
aa.	the comments or submissions received from any authority consulted under clause 66	Submissions received on the application are to be considered and addressed through the assessment process.	\checkmark
ab.	any other planning consideration the local government considers appropriate	N/A	\checkmark



State Planning Policy 3.7 – Planning in Bushfire Prone Areas

The subject site is designated to be bushfire prone as outlined within Figure 11



Figure 11. Bushfire Prone Mapping

The provisions of SPP 3.7 and associated guidelines for Planning in Bushfire Prone Areas (V1.4) apply to the proposed development.

Section 2.6 – Discretionary Decision-Making states the following applicable to this application:

Decision-makers can apply exemptions from the requirements of SPP 3.7 and these Guidelines where there is no intensification of land-use, and/or the proposal is not increasing the bushfire threat. Intensification of land use and/or development may include planning proposals that:



- a. result in an increase of visitors, residents or employees; or
- b. involve the occupation of employees on site for more than three hours at a time for multiple periods during a week.

An Extractive Industry is listed as a land use which may be considered exempt from compliance with the guidelines where no habitable buildings are proposed and where the proposal does no propose an intensification of land use. Since the proposal does not contain any habitable buildings, and employees onsite are to be onsite for periods of haulage and loading only, the application is considered exempt from requiring a bushfire assessment at this stage.

EPA Separation Distances between Industrial and Sensitive Land Uses (GS3)

The Environmental Protection Authority (EPA) has prepared a guiding document for assessment of environmental factors associated with the separation distances between sensitive land uses and Industrial land uses.

The proposed extractive industry is of a nature which reflects the 'Extractive Industry - Sand and Limestone' industry listed within Appendix 1. The relevant separation distance is recommended to be 300-500m to sensitive land uses, depending on the size and nature of operations, with key impacts associated with operations being noise and dust.

The proposed development is located 400m from the nearest sensitive land use (closest point at stage 6), and 496m from the nearest building envelope within the Hamelin Ridge Estate. Staging of operations from south to north will ensure extraction will predominantly be located behind a large face, and ensure operations are appropriately screened to prevent any potential impacts such as dust or noise.



Figure 12. Separation Distances To Nearest Sensitive Land Uses

The development proposal is supported by an acoustic report and environmental management plans that demonstrate the proposal can achieve compliance with the relevant standards and therefore the proposed development will not detrimentally impact the nearby land uses.







element.

Appendix C – Development Plans







Context Plan

Lot 22 (9730) Caves Road, Hamelin Bay

Date: 28 Aug 2024 Scale: NTS @ A3 File: 24-132 CP-1 A Staff: DL CCG JJ Checked: DL

element.

Level 18, 191 St Georges Terrace, Perth Western Australia 6000. PO Box 7375 Cloisters Square, Perth Western Australia 6850. T. +61 8 9289 8300 | E. hello@elementwa.com.au elementwa.com.au

WA Pty Lid. This conceptive been prepared for the purposes of meeting distribution, agreement disclaimed by Element Advisory WA Pty Lid. This conceptive been prepared for the purposes of meeting distribution, agreement disclaimed by Element Advisory WA Pty Lid. This conceptive been prepared for the purposes of meeting distribution, agreement construct or part thereof) of any kinet excession active and the prepared distribution agreement disclaimed by Element Advisory WA Pty Lid. This conceptive been prepared distribution agreement distribution agreement disclaimed by Element Advisory WA Pty Lid. and any time Liability is expressed distribution agreement disclaimed by Element Advisory WA Pty Lid. and any time Liability is expressed distribution.



Excavation Works Plan Lot 22 (9730) Caves Road, Hamelin Bay

LEGEND
Subject Site
Extractive Industry Licence Area (14ha)
Existing Contours / Survey (1m)
Existing Contours / Survey (5m)
Maximum Groundwater Level Contours (1m) (WML)
Groundwater Monitoring Bore Locations (WML July 2024)
———— Existing Lot Boundary
●● ● Existing Power Infrastructure
Proposed Stage Boundary (2ha)
Proposed Internal Haulage Route
Planned Building Envelopes (Lot 21 Caves Road LDP 2023)





Level 18, 191 St Georges Terrace, Perth Western A PO Box 7375 Cloisters Square, Perth Western Aus T. +61 8 9289 8300 | E. hello@elementwa.com.au



Site Plan Lot 22 (9730) Caves Road, Hamelin Bay





Level 18, 191 St Georges Terrace, Perth Western Australia 6000. PO Box 7375 Cloisters Square, Perth Western Australia 6850. T. +61 8 9289 8300 | E. hello@elementwa.com.au elementwa.com.



POST EXTRACTION PLAN Lot 22 (No. 9730) Caves Road, HAMELIN BAY

Plan No.	24210-01	BUNBURY OFFICE:	COPYRIGHT:
Date	27/06/24	21 Spencer Street, BUNBURY WA 6230	This document is and shall property of HARLEY DYKSTF The document may only be
Drawn	JW	T: 08 9792 6000	purpose for which it was co and in accordance with the
Checked	DJ	E: bunbury@harleydykstra.com.au W: www.harleydykstra.com.au	engagement for the commi Unauthorised use of this de any form whatsover is proh
Revision	С	ALBANY BUNBURY BUSSELTON	I FORRESTDALE
Scale	1.3000@43		

[]
F ' -
]
—— AE ——
— E —

Extraction Pit	Approx. Volume (BCM)
Total	1,314,489



PLANNING & SURVEY SOLUTIONS



element.

Appendix D – Acoustic Assessment









MCDOUGALL QUARRIES PTY LTD

EXTRACTIVE INDUSTRY LOT 22 (9730) CAVES ROAD, HAMELIN BAY

ACOUSTIC ASSESSMENT

AUGUST 2024

OUR REFERENCE: 33157-3-24200





DOCUMENT CONTROL PAGE

ACOUSTIC ASSESSMENT

CAVES ROAD, HAMELIN BAY

Job No: 24200

Document Reference: 33157-3-24200

FOR

MCDOUGALL QUARRIES PTY LTD

		DOCUMENT INF	ORMATION			
Author:	Paul Daly		Checked By:		George Watts	
Date of Issue:	9 th August 202	4				
			IISTORY			
Revision	Description		Dat	e	Author	Checked
1	Revised Excava	ation Plan	19/0	08/2024	PLD	
2	Client Comme	nts	26/0	08/2024	PLD	
		DOCUMENT DIS	STRIBUTION			
Сору No.	Version No.	Destination			Hard Copy	Electronic Copy
1	3	Element Att: Daniel Lewis Email: <u>daniel.lewis@eleme</u>	ntwa.com.au			✓



CONTENTS

1.	INTRODUCTION	1
2.	SUMMARY	2
3.	CRITERIA	3
4.	CALCULATED NOISE LEVELS	5
5.	MONITORED AMBIENT NOISE	7
6.	RESULTS	10
7.	ASSESSMENT	10
8.	CONCLUSION	11

APPENDICIES

- A Site Layout
- B Noise Contours
- C Ambient Noise Monitoring



1. INTRODUCTION

Herring Storer Acoustics have been commissioned by Element on behalf of McDougall Quarries Pty Ltd to undertake an acoustic assessment of noise emissions from the proposed lime sand and limestone extraction operations located at Lot 40 (9730) Caves Road, Hamelin Bay.

The proposed extraction operations will operate from 07:00 – 19:00 Monday to Friday and 07:00 – 13:00 on Saturdays. No operations would occur on Sundays or Public Holidays.

The nearest residential premises are located to the east / northeast of the proposed excavation activities. The most critical in terms of distance from the proposed operations, are approximately 400m from the boundary of the nearest operations. Future residential locations to the north have been noted and also assessed for noise impact.

The main access road is via the east as shown in Figure 1.1, along with the proposed operations.



FIGURE 1.1 – EXTRACTION OPERATIONS

This assessment is provided to support the regulatory approvals processes and demonstrate compliance with the requirements of the *Environmental Protection (Noise) Regulations 1997* can be achieved.

As part of the study, the following was carried out:

- \circ $\;$ $\;$ Identification of individual operations and the associated noise levels.
- Measurement of the existing background noise levels.
- Assess the predicted noise levels at the nearest surrounding highly noise sensitive premises for compliance with the appropriate criteria.
- If exceedances are predicted, comment on possible noise amelioration options for compliance with the appropriate criteria.

For information, a locality plan is shown in Appendix A.



2. SUMMARY

Assessment has been conducted on the proposed limestone and sand extraction operations for Lot 40 (9730) Caves Road, Hamelin Bay.

The facility would only operate during the day period (being Monday to Friday 07:00 to 19:00 hours and 07:00 to 16:00 on Saturdays). Therefore, at the neighbouring residences, the applicable acoustic criteria for this assessment is the assigned L_{A10} day period noise level of 45 dB(A).

Noise received at the nearest residential premises has been determined to be 45 dB(A) for the extraction operations for the highest noise level at any stage of the operations. This can be compared to the applicable assigned noise level criteria of 45 dB(A).

Noise monitoring conducted shows that the ambient noise (background) is generally around 45 to 50 dB(A) during the day. Given this, annoying characteristics such as tonality may be present, hence a +5 dB(A) penalty has been included in the assessable noise level stated above.

Information provided is that the material is understood to be located around 10m deep (from ground level). Therefore, as the pits progress, the bottom of the pit will be such that there is a pit wall (operating face) being maintained between equipment and receivers.

As there is a Cat D9 Dozer to be used in the operations, both this and the crushing plant require noise control to ensure compliance. Predictive noise modelling has been conducted where the dozer, located at natural surface level commences operations in Stage 1. The dozer is required to operate from the western most point and clear a sufficient area on the western side of Stage 1 to reach the material. Figure 2.1 below details the active area for the dozer for the commencement of works. Once a sufficient depth (5-6m) is achieved within Stage 1, progression of the pit through to Stage 2 can continue with the use of the dozer.



FIGURE 2.1 – DOZER OPERATIONS - SURFACE ONLY



Additionally, the crushing and screening plant require noise control in the form of a barrier. If the plant is located within the pit at a depth of 5m, then this would provide sufficient attenuation. However, at depth less than this a bund is required in close proximity to the plant to form a barrier.

Modelling has assumed the progression of the pit through the numbered stages. Provided the barrier in the form of a pit wall, or bunding to a minimum height of 3m is maintained, noise levels would be compliant.

Given these operating parameters, noise levels received at the nearest premises has been calculated to comply with the *Environmental Protection (Noise) Regulations 1997* for the operating times as outlined in this assessment.

3. <u>CRITERIA</u>

The allowable noise level for noise sensitive premises in the vicinity of the proposed site is prescribed by the *Environmental Protection (Noise) Regulations 1997*. Regulations 7 and 8 stipulate maximum allowable external noise levels or assigned noise levels that can be received at a premise from another premises. For residential premises, this noise level is determined by the calculation of an influencing factor, which is then added to the base levels shown below. The influencing factor is calculated for the usage of land within two circles, having radii of 100m and 450m from the premises of concern. The base noise levels for residential premises are listed in Table 3.1.

Premises Receiving	Time of Day	Assigned Level (dB)			
Noise	Time of Day	L _{A 10}	L _{A 1}	L _{A max}	
Noise sensitive premises	0700 - 1900 hours Monday to Saturday (Day)	45 + IF	55 + IF	65 + IF	
	0900 - 1900 hours Sunday and Public Holidays (Sunday / Public Holiday Day Period)	40 + IF	50 + IF	65 + IF	
	1900 - 2200 hours all days (Evening)	40 + IF	50 + IF	55 + IF	
	2200 hours on any day to 0700 hours Monday to Saturday and 0900 hours Sunday and Public Holidays (Night)	35 + IF	45 + IF	55 + IF	
Note: L _{A10} is the noise	e level exceeded for 10% of the time.				

TABLE 3.1 - BASELINE ASSIGNED OUTDOOR NOISE LEVEL

L_{A10} is the noise level exceeded for 10% of the time
 L_{A1} is the noise level exceeded for 1% of the time.
 L_{Amax} is the maximum noise level.
 IF is the influencing factor.

It is a requirement that received noise be free of annoying characteristics (tonality, modulation and impulsiveness), defined below as per Regulation 9.

"impulsiveness"	means betwee a single	eans a variation in the emission of a noise where the difference tween L _{Apeak} and L _{Amax Slow} is more than 15 dB when determined for single representative event;				
"modulation"	means	a variation in the emission of noise that –				
	(a)	is more than 3dB $L_{A\ Fast}$ or is more than 3 dB $L_{A\ Fast}$ in any one-third octave band;				
	(b)	is present for more at least 10% of the representative assessment period; and				
	(c)	is regular, cyclic and audible;				



"tonality" means the presence in the noise emission of tonal characteristics where the difference between –

- (a) the A-weighted sound pressure level in any one-third octave band; and
- (b) the arithmetic average of the A-weighted sound pressure levels in the 2 adjacent one-third octave bands,

is greater than 3 dB when the sound pressure levels are determined as $L_{Aeq,T}$ levels where the time period T is greater than 10% of the representative assessment period, or greater than 8 dB at any time when the sound pressure levels are determined as $L_{A \ Slow}$ levels.

The nearest potential noise sensitive premises to the proposed development have been identified using the area map in Figure 3.1. It is understood that there is the potential for development to the north of the extractive works, hence, there future residential premises have been assessed, noted at R3.

The usage of the surrounding land use varies from rural (with residential premises) and other extractive industries. Therefore, the assigned noise levels for operational times are as noted in Table 3.2.



FIGURE 3.1 – RECEIVER LOCATION MAP

TABLE 3.2 – ASSIGNED NOISE LEVELS

Dromises Dessiving Noise		Time of Davi	Assigned Level (dB)		
Premises Receiving Noise	IF OD	Time of Day	L _{A 10}	L _{A 1}	L _{A max}
Receivers R1 to R3	0	0700 - 1900 hours Monday to Saturday (Day)	45	55	65



4. CALCULATED NOISE LEVELS

Noise immissions¹ at the nearest neighbouring residential premises, due to noise associated with the proposed operations, were modelled with the computer programme SoundPlan using Concawe algorithms. Sound power levels used for the calculations are based on measured sound pressure levels of similar equipment proposed for use on site.

The modelling of noise levels has been based on noise sources and sound power levels shown in Table 4.1.

Source Name	Quantity	SWL dB(A)
Loaders (Cat 966 or similar)	1	105
Screening Plant (McCloskey S190 Screener or Similar)	1	101
Crushing Plant (Terex J1175)	1	113
Semi- Tipper Truck	1	98
Excavator (PC330 or similar)	1	100
Dozer (CAT D9)	1	113

TABLE 4.1 - SOUND	POWER LEVEL	- NOISE SOURCES	dB(A)
-------------------	-------------	-----------------	-------

Note: The above equipment models have been used to provide an indication of the size. Other models may be used although these have been assumed to have a similar sound power level.

Based on noise emissions from the above equipment, an overall operating scenario has been developed. Figure 4.1 details the source locations assumed in the predictive modelling along with the proposed development of the pit.



FIGURE 4.1 – SOURCE LOCATION AND PIT PROGRESSION

¹ Immissions – noise received at a source

² Emissions – noise emanating from a source and / or location

Based on the above, various operating scenarios have been developed for each stage of the proposal. As the fixed plant, being the loader, crusher and screen will generally remain in a static location, this has been modelled for each stage. The truck transporting of material can be within any stage; hence this has been modelled in a separate scenario and included in the overall assessable noise level (added to the fixed plant noise levels). The excavator could operate anywhere within the staged area, whilst the loader would be generally located with the crushing and screen plant, also being available to load out material onto trucks.

It is noted that each stage is assessed individually, with the noise contour plot for the overall noise level being a maximum of each stage (not the cumulative of all stages) for information purposes only.

Information provided is that the material is understood to be located around 10m deep (from ground level). Therefore, as the pits progress, the bottom of the pit will be such that there is a pit wall (operating face) being maintained between equipment and receivers.

As there is a Cat D9 Dozer to be used in the operations, both this and the crushing plant require noise control to ensure compliance. Predictive noise modelling has been conducted where the dozer, located at natural surface level commences operations in Stage 1. The dozer is required to operate from the western most point and clear a sufficient area on the western side of Stage 1 to reach the material. Figure 4.2 details the active area for the dozer for the commencement of works. Once a sufficient depth (5-6m) is achieved within Stage 1, progression of the pit through to stage 2 can continue with the use of the dozer.



FIGURE 4.2 – DOZER OPERATIONS - SURFACE ONLY

Additionally, the crushing and screening plant require noise control in the form of a barrier. If the plant is located within the pit at a depth of 5m, then this would provide sufficient attenuation. However, at depth less than this a bund is required in close proximity to the plant to form a barrier.



Modelling has assumed the progression of the pit through the numbered stages. Provided the barrier, in the form of a pit wall, or bunding to a minimum height of 3m is maintained, noise levels would be compliant.

Therefore, the operating scenarios considered are:

- Scenario 1 Stage 1 Fixed Plant, Mobile Equipment and truck movements
- Scenario 2 Stage 2 Fixed Plant, Mobile Equipment and truck movements
- Scenario 3 Stage 3 Fixed Plant, Mobile Equipment and truck movements
- Scenario 4 Stage 4 Fixed Plant, Mobile Equipment and truck movements
- Scenario 5 Stage 5 Fixed Plant, Mobile Equipment and truck movements
- Scenario 6 Stage 6 Fixed Plant, Mobile Equipment and truck movements
- Scenario 7 Stage 7 Fixed Plant, Mobile Equipment and truck movements

The following input data was used in the calculations:

- a) Provided area plots.
- b) Sound Power Levels listed in Table 4.1.
- c) Ground contours and receiver point provided by client (Appendix A).

Weather conditions for modelling were as stipulated in the Environmental Protection Authority's *"Draft Guidelines on Environmental Noise for Prescribed Premises"* and for the day period are as listed in Table 4.2.

Condition	Day
Temperature	20°C
Relative humidity	50%
Pasquill Stability Class	E
Wind speed	4 m/s*

TABLE 4.2 – WEATHER CONDITIONS

* From sources, towards receivers.

5. MONITORED AMBIENT NOISE

As per the "Draft Guidelines on Environmental Noise for Prescribed Premises" (released in May 2016), continuous noise monitoring has been conducted to establish the ambient noise levels.

The monitoring location was on the southern boundary of the development, nearest to the neighboring residence. Monitoring commenced on the 19th June 2024 and continued through until the 5th July 2024. Figure 5.1 contains a map of the monitoring location, with Figure 5.2 showing pictures of the monitor in situ.





FIGURE 5.1 – MONITORING LOCATION



FIGURE 5.2 – MONITORING PICTURE – IN SITU

Noise monitoring results are summarised graphically below in Figure 5.3, with the full results contained in Appendix C.





FIGURE 5.3 – MONITORED NOISE LEVELS – TOTAL MONITORING PERIOD

During the monitoring period intermittent rainfall occurred. The days (periods) where rainfall impacted noise levels have been discounted from the assessment of ambient noise.

For informational purposes, a summary of the average noise level for each daily regulatory time period is shown in Table 5.1.

Weather data for the monitoring period was sourced via the Bureau of Meteorology web site for the area.

Day (Data	Noise Level	Commente
Day / Date	Day Period	comments
Wednesday, 19 June 2024	49.5	
Thursday, 20 June 2024	44.5	
Friday, 21 June 2024	55.2	
Saturday, 22 June 2024	63.0	Rainfall
Sunday, 23 June 2024	46.5	Rainfall
Monday, 24 June 2024	27.5	Rainfall
Tuesday, 25 June 2024	25.8	
Wednesday, 26 June 2024	46.3	Rainfall
Thursday, 27 June 2024	46.1	Rainfall
Friday, 28 June 2024	49.9	Rainfall
Saturday, 29 June 2024	46.1	Rainfall
Sunday, 30 June 2024	45.6	
Monday, 1 July 2024	52.9	
Tuesday, 2 July 2024	53.1	Rainfall
Wednesday, 3 July 2024	45.0	
Thursday, 4 July 2024	48.4	
Average (Good Days)	49.9	

TABLE 5.1 –	SUMMARY	NOISE	LEVELS
-------------	---------	-------	--------

6. <u>RESULTS</u>

Calculated noise levels associated with the noise emissions from the proposed operations for the assumed scenarios, including bunding to Stages 1 - 3 are summarised below in Table 6.1. Appendix B contains the overall noise contour plots.

Operating Scenario	Description	Calculated Noise Level (L _{A10} dB(A))			
		R1	R2	R3	
Scenario 1	Stage 1 Fixed Plant, Mobile equipment and Truck Movement	30	24	30	
Scenario 2	Stage 2 Fixed Plant, Mobile equipment and Truck Movement	33	31	33	
Scenario 3	Stage 3 Fixed Plant, Mobile equipment and Truck Movement	35	33	36	
Scenario 4	Stage 4 Fixed Plant, Mobile equipment and Truck Movement	37	35	36	
Scenario 5	Stage 5 Fixed Plant, Mobile equipment and Truck Movement	37	36	37	
Scenario 6	Stage 6 Fixed Plant, Mobile equipment and Truck Movement	34	29	40	
Scenario 7	Stage 7 Fixed Plant, Mobile equipment and Truck Movement	40	39	37	

TABLE 6.1 – CALCULATED NOISE LEVEL

7. <u>ASSESSMENT</u>

For the day time operations, based on calculated noise levels at the nearest premises, noise levels could be considered as potentially containing tonal characteristics.

Based on the assessable noise levels above, comparison against the relevant assigned noise level is contained in Table 7.1. For the purpose of assessment, the highest noise level received for any stage of the operation has been assessed.

Receiver	Premises Receiving Noise Assessable Noise Level dB(A)	Time of Day	Assigned Level (dB)	Compliance
R1	40[45]			Complies
R2	39[44]	0700 - 1900 hours Monday to Saturday (Day)	45	Complies
R3	40[45]			Complies

TABLE 7.1 – ASSESSMENT OF NOISE LEVELS

[] Denotes penalty for tonality



8. <u>CONCLUSION</u>

Assessment has been conducted on the proposed limestone and sand extraction operations for Lot 40 (9730) Caves Road, Hamelin Bay.

The facility would only operate during the day period (being Monday to Friday 07:00 to 19:00 hours and 07:00 to 13:00 on Saturdays). Therefore, at the neighbouring residences, the applicable acoustic criteria for this assessment is the assigned L_{A10} day period noise level of 45 dB(A).

Noise received at the nearest residential premises has been determined, to be 45 dB(A) for the extraction operations for the highest noise level at any stage of the operations. This can be compared to the applicable assigned noise level criteria of 45 dB(A).

Noise monitoring conducted shows that the ambient noise (background) is generally around 44 dB(A) during the day. Given this, annoying characteristics such as tonality may be present, hence a +5 dB(A) penalty has been included in the assessable noise level stated above.

To ensure the above noise levels are maintained, noise control as outline in this report is required.

Given these operating parameters, noise levels received at the nearest premises has been calculated to comply with the *Environmental Protection (Noise) Regulations 1997* for the operating times as outlined in this assessment.



APPENDIX A LOCATION MAP





Date: 13 Aug 2024 Scale: 1:5000 @ A3 1:2500 @ A1 File: 24-132 EX01B Staff: DL CCG JJ Checked: DL

. . .

RECEIVED By Shire of Augusta Margaret River 13 September 2024

Excavation Works Plan Lot 22 (9730) Caves Road, Hamelin Bay



APPENDIX B

Noise Contours






















APPENDIX C

Ambient Noise Monitoring



element.

Appendix E – Traffic Impact Statement









PTG/00626

Transport Impact Statement Lot 22 (9730) Caves Road, Hamelin Bay – Proposed Extractive Industry

3rd September 2024 | Revision D

Prepared for McDougall Quarries Pty Ltd

www.ptgconsulting.com.au



CONTENTS

1 Introduction	4
1.1 Background	4
2 Proposed Development	4
2.1 Site Location	4
2.2 Context with Surrounds	5
2.3 Existing Land Use	5
2.4 Proposed Land Use	6
3 Vehicular Access and Parking	7
3.1 Access Arrangements	7
3.2 Public, Private, Disabled Parking Set-Down & Pick-Up	8
4 Service/Delivery Vehicles (non-residential)	8
4.1 Access Arrangements	8
4.2 Loading Facilities	8
5 Service Vehicles (residential)	8
6 Hours of Operation (non-residential)	9
7 Traffic Volumes	9
7.1 Development – Daily / Peak Traffic Volumes	9
7.2 Types of Vehicles	9
8 Traffic Management on Frontage Streets	1C
8.1 Road Hierarchy	1C
8.2 Restricted Access Vehicle (RAV) Network	
8.3 Daily / Peak Traffic Volumes	
8.4 Future Road Network	
9 Public Transport Access	
9.1 Nearest Bus / Train Routes	
9.2 Nearest Bus Stops	
9.3 Pedestrian / Cycle Links to Bus Stops	
9.4 Future Public Transport Facilities	
10 Pedestrian and Cycle Access Facilities	
10.1 Existing Pedestrian / Cycling Network	
10.2 Future Pedestrian / Cycling Network	
11 Site Specific Issues	14
11.1 Turn Treatment Warrant Assessment	14
11.2 Sight Distance Assessment	
12 Safety Issues	
13 Summary and Conclusions	



REPORT DETAILS

Unique Document Identification

	Information
Document Title	Transport Impact Statement Lot 22 (9730) Caves Road, Hamelin Bay – Proposed Extractive Industry
Project Number	PTG/00626
Document ID	Rev D
Client	McDougall Quarries Pty Ltd

PTG Consulting Office Details

	Information
Location	Perth
Telephone	0452 530 042
Email	ray.cook@ptgconsulting.com.au

Revision Details

Revision No.	Date	Comments	
Rev A	5/8/2024	Draft	
Rev B	6/8/2024	Final	
Rev C	15/8/2024	Updated Site Plan	
Rev D	3/9/2024	Minor updates	

Document Approval

Author	Approved By
SGL	RJC

1 INTRODUCTION

1.1 Background

PTG Consulting (PTG) has been commissioned by **McDougall Quarries Pty Ltd** to prepare a Transport Impact Statement (TIS) for the proposed extractive industry (lime sands quarry) to be located at Lot 22 (9730) Caves Road, Hamelin Bay.

This report has been prepared in accordance with the Western Australian Planning Commission (WAPC) Transport Assessment Guidelines for Developments: Volume 4 – Individual Developments (2016) and the Transport Impact Statement (TIS) Checklist is included at **Appendix A**.

Specifically, this report aims to assess the operations of the proposed development internally and its connections to the adjacent road network, with a focus on traffic volumes, access and accessibility.

This report also outlines the requirements and opportunities associated with traffic and transport within the development, referencing relevant Council and WAPC policies and guidelines as well as best-practice planning within Western Australia.

2 PROPOSED DEVELOPMENT

2.1 Site Location

The site is located at Lot 22 (9730) Caves Road, Hamelin Bay. The Site is bounded by Caves Road in the east, Cosy Corner Road in the south and Leeuwin-Naturaliste National Park in the west.

Refer to **Figure 1** for the Site location.

Figure 1 – Site Location



Source: SLIP

2.2 Context with Surrounds

The Site is located approximately 7km south west of Karridale and 15km north of Augusta.

No major attractors and generators are located within 800m of the subject site.

Surrounding land uses mostly consist of Leeuwin-Naturaliste National Park to the west and undeveloped rural land to the east. An existing extractive industry is located nearby on Lot 61 (42) Grosse Road. To the north of the Site a large lot residential subdivision 'The Ridge at Hamelin Bay' is also being developed.

Figure 2 shows the zoning within the surrounding area of the Site.

Figure 2 - Land Use Zoning within the Surrounding Area of the Site



Source: DPLH - Local Planning Scheme 1, Shire of Augusta Margaret River

2.3 Existing Land Use

The site currently consists of 118ha of undeveloped rural land, used predominantly for grazing.



2.4 Proposed Land Use

The proposed development contemplates an extractive industry (lime sands quarry), across a total of 18ha of the site as illustrated in **Figure 3**. A larger version of the site plan is included in **Appendix B**.

Figure 3 – Proposed Development



Source: Element

3 VEHICULAR ACCESS AND PARKING

3.1 Access Arrangements

Access to the Site is via a proposed crossover on Caves Road, located at SLK 99.69, as indicated on **Figure 4**. *Figure 4 – Proposed Crossover Location*



Source: Element

A site inspection was undertaken in July 2024, during which the entire frontage of the Site was examined with a view to identifying the optimum location for a crossover to Caves Road. As this section of Caves Road consists of a curving and undulating road alignment, the proposed crossover location has been selected to provide the maximum available sight distance to both the north and the south. For details of the available sight distance for the proposed crossover, refer to Section 11 – Site Specific Issues.

The proposed crossover will be located opposite two existing crossovers to Lot 31 (18) Grosse Road and Lot 29 (9789) Caves Road, Deepdene. As these crossovers serve undeveloped grazing land, it is anticipated that traffic movements will be extremely low and therefore no issues with the crossover location were identified.

The crossover will be designed to accommodate 27.5m B-double (RAV4) vehicle movements in all directions, in accordance with the typical design specification shown in Main Roads drawing 200431-0195 (**Figure 5**).





3.2 Public, Private, Disabled Parking Set-Down & Pick-Up

No formalised parking is proposed on site. Suitable informal areas for the parking of light and heavy vehicles will be developed in accordance with operational requirements.

4 SERVICE/DELIVERY VEHICLES (NON-RESIDENTIAL)

4.1 Access Arrangements

All service and delivery vehicles will use the proposed crossover on Caves Road as described in Section 3.1.

4.2 Loading Facilities

There will be suitable loading and unloading facilities within the proposed site.

5 SERVICE VEHICLES (RESIDENTIAL)

Not applicable as proposal is for an extractive industry.

6 HOURS OF OPERATION (NON-RESIDENTIAL)

The proposed development is anticipated to operate 7am – 5pm Monday to Saturday.

7 TRAFFIC VOLUMES

7.1 Development – Daily / Peak Traffic Volumes

Trip generation for the proposed development has been estimated based on the following information provided by the Applicant:

- » A maximum of 15 laden B-doubles per day.
- » 2 staff on-site to operate to the loader and dozer/excavator.

The maximum of 15 laden B-doubles per day is likely to occur only during short peak periods of the year, depending on customer requirements. Over the full year, the average daily volume is expected to be much lower.

Peak hours are not known at this stage, so for a robust assessment, it has been assumed a maximum of 4 laden B-double movements could occur during one hour during busy periods.

For a robust assessment, it has been assumed that both on-site staff may visit the site twice per day (e.g. leaving for lunch break and returning).

Table 1 summarises the estimated traffic generation during for both peak hour and daily.

Table 1 – Development Trip Generation

Users	Peak Hour		Daily	
	IN	OUT	IN	OUT
Light Vehicles	0	0	4	4
Heavy Vehicles	4	4	15	15
	4	4	19	19
lotal	8	8 38		8

As can be seen from the table above, the proposed development is estimated to generate approximately 8 trips in the peak hour and 38 trips daily.

The trip generation associated with the development falls within the "low impact" range according to WAPC TIA guidelines.

7.2 Types of Vehicles

The largest vehicle expected to access the Site is a 27.5m B-double (RAV4). Smaller trucks



8 TRAFFIC MANAGEMENT ON FRONTAGE STREETS

8.1 Road Hierarchy

The road network within Western Australia is defined by Main Roads WA road hierarchy which describes the function, characteristic and management of each type of road. A description of each road type as per Main Roads WA Road Hierarchy criteria is summarised in **Table 2** below.

Table 2 - Road Hierarchy Description

Road Type	Description
Primary Distributors	Provide for major regional and inter-regional traffic movement and carry large volumes of generally fast moving traffic. Some are strategic freight routes, and all are State Roads. They are managed by Main Roads Western Australia.
District Distributor A	Carry traffic between industrial, commercial and residential areas and generally connect to Primary Distributors. These are likely to be truck routes and provide only limited access to adjoining property. They are managed by local government.
District Distributor B	Perform a similar function to type A District Distributors but with reduced capacity due to flow restrictions from access to and roadside parking alongside adjoining property. These are often older roads with a traffic demand in excess of that originally intended. District Distributor A and B roads run between land-use cells and generally not through them, forming a grid which would ideally space them around 1.5 kilometres apart. They are managed by local government.
Regional Distributor	Roads that are not Primary Distributors, but which link significant destinations and are designed for efficient movement of people and goods within and beyond regional areas. They are managed by local government.
Local Distributor (Urban)	Roads that carry traffic within a cell and link District Distributors or Regional Distributors at the boundary, to access roads. The route of Local Distributors should discourage through traffic so that the cell formed by the grid of District Distributors only carries traffic belonging to or serving the area. These roads should accommodate buses but discourage trucks. Urban Local Distributor roads are managed by local government.
Local Distributor (Rural)	Connect to other Rural Distributors and to Rural Access Roads. Not Regional Distributors, but which are designed for efficient movement of people and goods within regional areas. Rural Local Distributor roads are managed by local government.
Access Roads	Provide access to abutting properties with amenity, safety and aesthetic aspects having priority over the vehicle movement function. These roads are bicycle and pedestrian friendly. They are managed by local government.

Figure 6 shows the road hierarchy network and Table 3 provides a summary of the road characteristics of the surrounding road network.

Figure 6 – Road Hierarchy



Source: Main Roads WA Road Information Mapping System (RIMS)

Road Name	Road Hierarchy	No. of Lanes	No. of Footpaths	Road Pavement Width (m)	Speed Limit
Caves Road	Primary Distributor	2	0	~6.1m	80km/h
Cosy Corner Road	Access Road	2	0	~6.1m	110km/h

Table 3 – Surrounding Network Road Hierarchy

8.2 Restricted Access Vehicle (RAV) Network

The existing RAV4 network in the vicinity of the Site is shown in **Figure 7**. Unconditional RAV4 access is available via Caves Road to the north and south of the Site, with conditional access also provided along Bushby Road to connect to Bussell and Brockman Highways at Karridale. A summary of the relevant routes is as follows:

- » Caves Road RAV 4 Without Conditions
- » Bushby Road RAV 4 With Conditions
- » Bussell Highway RAV 4 Without Conditions
- » Brockman Highway RAV 4 Without Conditions

RAV movements generated by the Site will utilise existing RAV networks to deliver extracted materials to customers.

Figure 7 - RAV Vehicle Network



Source: Main Roads WA HVS Network Map

8.3 Daily / Peak Traffic Volumes

Existing weekday traffic volumes were obtained from Main Roads WA Traffic Map for key road sections within the vicinity of the Site and are shown below in **Table 4**.

Table 4 - Existing Background Traffic Volumes

Location	Year	Weekday	AM Peak Hour	PM Peak Hour	HV%
Caves Road – South of Cosy Corner Road (1km south of Site)	2018/19	334	43	49	8.1%
Caves Road - North of Bushby Road (6km north of Site)	2023/24	408	53	47	18.4%
Caves Road - West of Bussell Highway (11km south of Site)	2023/24	551	62	58	13.8%

Source: Main Roads WA

As shown in Table 4, the traffic count located closest to the Site is 6 years old and may not reflect current volumes. Therefore, historical data was reviewed for the other two count sites and linear growth rates calculated based on a comparison between 2019/20 and 2023/24 data.

- Caves Road North of Bushby Road daily traffic volumes have reduced by 7% since 2019/20 (linear growth rate of -1.48% per annum)
- Caves Road West of Bussell Highway daily traffic volumes have reduced by 4% since 2019/20 (linear growth rate of -0.89% per annum)

Based on the above, the 2018/19 daily volume of 334 vehicles per day is considered a reasonable estimate of current traffic on Caves Road in the vicinity of the Site.

8.4 Future Road Network

PTG is not aware of any planned changes to the road network in the vicinity of the Site.

9 PUBLIC TRANSPORT ACCESS

9.1 Nearest Bus / Train Routes

There are no public transport services located within an 800m radius of the Site.

9.2 Nearest Bus Stops

The closest bus stop to the Site is located on Bussell Highway in Karridale, approximately 7km away from the Site. The stop is served by TransWA coach services between Bunbury and Augusta.

9.3 Pedestrian / Cycle Links to Bus Stops

Not applicable.

9.4 Future Public Transport Facilities

PTG Consulting is not aware of any proposed future public transport services or facilities in the vicinity of the Site.

10 PEDESTRIAN AND CYCLE ACCESS FACILITIES

10.1 Existing Pedestrian / Cycling Network

There are no pedestrian/cycling routes within 400 m of the Site.

10.2 Future Pedestrian / Cycling Network

PTG Consulting is not aware of any planned pedestrian/cycling network development in the vicinity of the Site.

11 SITE SPECIFIC ISSUES

11.1 Turn Treatment Warrant Assessment

In accordance with Section 2.4.6 'Auxiliary Turn Lanes' of the Main Roads Driveways Policy, a turn warrant assessment has been undertaken based on the method formerly located in the Main Roads Supplement to Austroads Guide to Road Design: Part 4 – Intersections and Crossings: General.

For a robust assessment, two scenarios have been assessed:

- » Scenario 1 All development traffic movements to/from the north.
- » Scenario 2 All development traffic movements to/from the south.

Peak hour traffic volumes have been taken from Site 52670 (Caves Road, South of Cosy Corner Road – SLK 100.55) for 13:00-14:00 on a weekday.

The results of the turn warrant assessment are presented in **Figure 8**. The peak hour turn volumes have been applied to all turning movements to illustrate both Scenario 1 and Scenario 2 in the one calculation table.

The results indicate that a Standard Right and Standard Left turn treatments are appropriate for the proposed crossover.

Figure 8 – Intersection Warrants





11.2 Sight Distance Assessment

Section 4.1 'Sight Distance' of the Main Roads *Driveways* Policy states that it is desirable that Safe Intersection Sight Distance (SISD) is provided at crossovers on state-controlled roads, in accordance with *Main Roads Supplement to Austroads Guide to Road Design: Part 4A – Unsignalised and Signalised Intersections.* However, where this is not possible, sight distance equal to Stopping Sight Distance (SSD) for the design speed for the road shall be provided as an absolute minimum.

A site inspection was undertaken in July 2024 to determine the preferred location for the crossover. The preferred location is at SLK 99.69¹ as this provides for the maximum sight distance for entering traffic across the entire lot frontage. Photographs illustrating the proposed crossover location and visibility to the north and south are provided in **Figure 10** and Figure 11.

Main Roads Supplement to Austroads Guide to Road Design: Part 4A – Unsignalised and Signalised Intersections, Table 3.2, indicates that SISD is 192m for a design speed of 80km/h and 226m for a design speed of 90km/h. Austroads Guide to Road Design: Part 3 – Geometric Design, Table 5.5, indicates that SSD is 114m for a design speed of 80km/h and 139m for a design speed of 90km/h.

Based on site observations, the available sight distance is approximately 200m to the north and 250m to the south, as indicated in **Figure 9**. Sight distance to the north meets SISD for an 80km/h design speed and sight distance to the south meets SISD for a 90km/h design speed. Sight distance in both direction is well in excess of SSD for 90km/h design speed.

As the road alignment to the north consists of a short uphill section followed by a curve right, it is unlikely that southbound traffic is travelling faster than the speed limit before the crossover, and any entering vehicles, become visible.

Figure 9 - Sight Distance



¹ There is some variation between SLK determined from the MRWA GPS-SLK map and those recorded on-site by the MRWA GPS-SLK app





```
Figure 11 - Crossover Location Photographs
```



Looking north at site of proposed crossover (on left)

12 SAFETY ISSUES

A review of the existing crash data from Main Roads WA Crash Map for the period between 1st January 2019 to 31 December 2023 was conducted for the surrounding roads. The crash locations are illustrated in **Figure 12**.

There are no recorded crashes on Caves Road for a distance of at least 3km either side of the Site. The low volume of traffic movements are not anticipated to have any material impact on road safety.

Figure 12 – Recorded Crash Locations



Source: Main Roads WA Crash Map



13 SUMMARY AND CONCLUSIONS

This report has been prepared in accordance with the Western Australian Planning Commission (WAPC) Transport Assessment Guidelines for Developments: Volume 4 – Individual Developments; the checklist is included at **Appendix A**.

The following conclusions can be drawn from this TIS:

- » The subject site will be utilised for extractive industry (lime sands quarry).
- » The proposed development will generate approximately 38 total daily trips during peak operational periods, consisting mostly of 27.5m B-doubles (RAV4).
- A new crossover is proposed to Caves Road at SLK 99.69. The crossover will be located in a position which maximises the available sight distance, and meets the requirements specified in Main Roads *Driveways* Policy.
- The proposed crossover will be designed in accordance with the general requirements of Main Roads I Policy.
- » There are no cycling, walking or public transport facilities within the vicinity of the Site.
- » There are no recorded crashes on Caves Road within 3km of the Site.
- » The proposed development can be expected to have a low traffic impact.





Appendix A

WAPC CHECKLIST FOR INDIVIDUAL DEVELOPMENT - TRANSPORT IMPACT STATEMENT







APPENDIX A – WAPC CHECKLIST

Item	Status	Comments/Proposal
Proposed development	Section 2	
proposed land use	Section 2	
existing land uses	Section 2	
context with surrounds	Section 2	
Vehicular access and parking	Section 3	
access arrangements	Section 3	
public, private, disabled parking set down / pick up	Section 3	
Service vehicles (non-residential)	Section 4	
access arrangements	Section 4	
on/off-site loading facilities	Section 4	
Service vehicles (residential)	N/A	
Rubbish collection and emergency vehicle access	N/A	
Hours of operation (non-residential only)	Section 6	
Traffic volumes	Section 7	
daily or peak traffic volumes	Section 7	
type of vehicles (e.g. cars, trucks)	Section 7	
Traffic management on frontage streets	Section 8	
Public transport access	Section 9	
nearest bus/train routes	Section 9	
nearest bus stops/train stations	Section 9	
pedestrian/cycle links to bus stops/train station	Section 9	
Pedestrian access/facilities	Section 10	
existing pedestrian facilities within the development (if any)	Section 10	
proposed pedestrian facilities within development	Section 10	
existing pedestrian facilities on surrounding roads	Section 10	
proposals to improve pedestrian access	NA	
Cycle access/facilities	10	
existing cycle facilities within the development (if any)	Section 10	
proposed cycle facilities within the development	N/A	
existing cycle facilities on surrounding roads	Section 10	
proposals to improve cycle access	N/A	
Site specific issues	Section 11	
Safety issues	Section 12	
identify issues	N/A	
remedial measures	N/A	





Appendix B







Excavation Works Plan

Lot 22 (9730) Caves Road, Hamelin Bay





Level 18, 191 St Georges Terrace, Perth Western Australia 6000. PO Box 7375 Cloisters Square, Perth Western Australia 6850. T. +61 8 9289 8300 | E. hello@elementwa.com.au elementwa.com.

claimed by Element Advisory WA Pty Ltd for any loss or damage which may be sustained by any person acting on any visual impression gained from this drawing.











element.

Appendix F – Environmental Management Plan








DUST MANAGEMENT PLAN

LOT 22 (9730) CAVES ROAD, HAMELIN BAY

August 2024



Telephone +61 418 950 852

info@accendoaustralia.com.au PO Box 5178 West Busselton WA 6280 ABN 11 160 028 642

www.accendoaustralia.com.au

Document Control

Version	Date	Author	Reviewer
V1	20/8/2024	PN	KMT/Element
V2	30/8/2024	PN	KMT
×			
Filename	2449_Lot 22 Caves F	Rd DMP_V2	

Limitations

This report has been prepared by Accendo Australia Pty Ltd in accordance with the scope limitations provided in this report, or as otherwise agreed, between the Client and Accendo.

This report is strictly limited to the matters stated in it and is not to be read as extending, by implication, to any other matter in connection with the matters addressed in it.

This report has been prepared based upon data and other information provided by the Client and other individuals and organisations, most of which are referred to in the report, which Accendo has not independently verified or checked beyond the agreed scope of work. Accendo does not accept liability in connection with such unverified information.

The conclusions and recommendations in this report are based on assumptions made by Accendo described in this report where and as they are required. Accendo disclaims liability arising from any of the assumptions being incorrect.

The report is based on site specific conditions encountered and information received at the time of preparation of this report or the time that site investigations were undertaken. Accendo disclaims responsibility for any changes that may have occurred after this time.

The preparation of this report has been undertaken and performed in a professional manner, in consideration of the scope of services and in accordance with environmental consulting practices. No other warranty is made.



CONTENTS

1	INTRODUCTION1
1.1	BACKGROUND1
1.2	PURPOSE AND SCOPE1
2	EXISTING ENVIRONMENT2
2.1	LAND USE2
2.2	SENSITIVE RECEPTORS
2.3	TOPOGRAPHY AND SOILS2
2.4	CLIMATE
3	EXTRACTION ACTIVITIES
3.1	OPERATIONAL WORKS4
3.	1.1 Final Contours
3.	1.2 Water Usage
4	POTENTIAL IMPACTS6
4.1	DUST SOURCES
4.2	RISK ASSESSMENT6
4.3	MANAGEMENT MEASURES
REFE	RENCES 12
FIGU	RES 13
APPE	NDIX A – EXCAVATION WORKS PLAN
APPE	NDIX B – WIND ROSES
APPE	NDIX C – POST EXTRACTION PLAN
APPE	NDIX D - COMPLAINTS REGISTER 17

TABLES

Table 1. Residential dwellings within 500 m of subject site	.2
Table 2. Dust management measures	.9
FIGURES	

Figure 1. Regional Location of the Subject Site





1 INTRODUCTION

1.1 Background

McDougall Quarries Pty Ltd (the applicant) is proposing to extract lime sand and limestone from a 14 hectare (ha) area within Lot 22 (HSE 9730) Caves Road, Hamelin Bay (herein referred to as the subject site) (refer to **Figure 1** and **Appendix A**).

This application is made for a ten year period however, the exact life of the project is difficult to estimate as it will be dependent on supply and demand trends.

The available volume of sand (*insitu* volume of approximately 1,314,489 m³) is to be extracted, commencing in the south and moving in a northerly direction before finishing in a stage along the east of the subject site (refer to **Appendix A**).

The slope of the final contours of the quarry will be approximately 30 m AHD which is consistent with the adjoining land.

Slopes of the batters at the end of excavation will be retained at 1:4 vertical to horizontal.

1.2 Purpose and Scope

This Dust Management Plan (DMP) has been prepared to fulfil the relevant requirements provided within the Shire of Augusta-Margaret River's (the Shire) *Local Planning Scheme No. 1* and *Local Planning Policy No. 3 Extractive Industries.* It is intended to provide the Shire, the public and relevant government agencies with an understanding of the proposal and the environmental strategies and commitments proposed to address dust emissions associated with the proposed land use. This document has been prepared to support and should be read in conjunction with, the *Environmental Management Plan* prepared by Accendo Australia (2024) for sand and limestone extraction within the subject site.

Recognised industry standard practices for dust control are well-established within Western Australia. The utilisation of these standard practices is proposed at the subject site to suppress dust and reduce potential impacts associated with dust emissions.

Management of these activities are an effective means to prevent adverse effects of dust. The purpose of this DMP is to review the risks and control measures to appropriately manage dust and mitigate its impact.

The scope of the DMP is to cover the following:

- Legislative and regulatory compliance;
- Existing environment;
- Risk assessment of potential dust sources and air quality impacts;
- Mitigation and measurement measures; and
- Roles and responsibilities in relation to dust management.





2 EXISTING ENVIRONMENT

2.1 Land Use

The subject site is zoned 'General Agriculture' pursuant to the Shire's *Local Planning Scheme No.* 1 and has previously been used for agriculture. The subject site is currently used for pasture.

The surrounding properties are zoned 'Rural Residential' to the north, 'National Park and Nature Reserve' to the west and south and a mixture of 'General Agriculture', 'Priority Agriculture' and 'Landscape Amenity' to the east pursuant to the Shire *Local Planning Scheme No. 1*.

2.2 Sensitive Receptors

The Environmental Protection Authority (EPA) *Guidance for the Assessment of Environmental Factors* (June 2005) provides generic separation distances to assist in the determination of suitable buffers where industry may have the potential to affect the amenity of a sensitive land use. In particular, for extractive industries, a buffer distance of 300 m to 500 m is recommended from sensitive land uses.

The closest residential dwellings to the subject site are provided below and shown in Appendix A.

Table 1. Residential dwellings within 500 m of the subject site.

Address	Distance to subject site (m)
Lot 31 (18) Grosse Road	400 m
Lot 9001 (Hamelin Ridge Estate)	>415 m
Lot 28 (9789) Caves Road	526 m

The closest residential dwelling to the subject site is located approximately 400 m to the north east of the subject site. Hamelin Ridge Estate, where most dwellings are yet to be constructed, is located to the north of the subject site, at distances greater than 415 m from the boundary. An additional residential dwelling is located to the east of the subject site at a distance greater than 500 m away.

2.3 Topography and Soils

The current topography of the subject site can be described as variable with the elevation ranging from 30 m Australian Height Datum (AHD) through the eastern portion of the subject site to approximately 40m AHD in the west. Elevated areas are located throughout the subject site and range in elevation from approximately 45 m AHD to 60 m AHD (refer to **Appendix A**).

The subject site is located within the Leeuwin Zone landform within the Gracetown Ridge systems consisting of "*lateritic plateau containing sandy gravel, loamy gravel and grey sandy duplex*" and "a *limestone ridge, in the coastal edge of the Leeuwin Zone containing yellow deep sand and red deep sand*", respectively. (Tille 2006).

The subject site is located within the following sub-systems:

- Kilcarnup rocky dunes phase Low to steep dunes (gradients 5-10%) not exposed to prevailing wines. Dark calcareous sands containing limestone rubble.
- Kilcarnup dunes (organic) phase Steep dunes (gradients usually in excess of 20%) not exposed to prevailing winds. Deep pale calcareous sands with brown topsoil.





2.4 Climate

The climate of the locality is classified as Mediterranean with warm to hot summers and cool wet winters.

The closest weather recording station is Cape Leeuwin (Station 9518). Temperatures are highest on average in February, at approximately 23.4°C. August has the lowest average temperature of the year of 11.3°C.

Rainfall for the area is approximately 950 mm per annum with approximately 88% of the rain falling during the winter months, April to October inclusive. Evaporation generally exceeds rainfall from October to March.

During the summer months the dominant wind in the mornings is from the south-east at 18 - 26 kms, swinging to the south-west at 37-46 kms in the afternoon. During winter, the winds are most commonly 18 - 26 kms with no dominant prevailing direction. During storms winds from the west and north-west can reach 74 kms (BoM 2020).

Rainfall intensity has been calculated using the Bureau of Meteorology (BoM) Intensity-Frequency-Duration (IFD) data system which yields the two hour 10 year average return interval storm event for the subject site as 38.3 mm/hr (refer to **Appendix B)**.





3 EXTRACTION ACTIVITIES

The lime sand and limestone quarry will cover an area of approximately 14 ha, with a current maximum elevation ranging from 30 m AHD to 60 m AHD. It will be excavated to an elevation of 30 m AHD commencing in the south of the subject site and heading north. Extraction activities will be divided into seven stages, of 2.0 ha in size (refer to **Appendix A**).

It is estimated that the total maximum volume of material to be removed will be approximately 1,314,489 m³. Over a ten year period, a maximum of approximately 131,449 m³ will be excavated each year, depending on supply and demand.

Earthen bunds for noise mitigation will be constructed with topsoil and overburden that will be stripped from the extraction footprint and other areas within the premise boundary. Construction of the bunds will be undertaken with an excavator and loader.

The planned end use of the quarry is to restore a natural soil profile and return the extraction area to pasture, ensuring that there is no net loss of agricultural land.

3.1 Operational Works

Using a loader, the topsoil (where available) will be stripped and placed in stockpiles. Overburden, if present, will be removed using a dump truck and stockpiled to a convenient location within each extraction stage for operations. Topsoil stockpiles will be less than 2 m high with a batter no greater than 1:3.

In order to comply with noise regulations, surface works with the dozer must commence from the western most point and clear a sufficient area on the western side of Stage 1 to reach the material. Once a sufficient depth (5-6m) is achieved within Stage 1, progression of the pit through to Stage 2 can continue with the use of the dozer (Herring Storer Acoustics, 2024).

The material will be excavated by an excavator, bulldozer or loader to a stockpile or loaded directly to waiting trucks for transport. A summary of the proposed extraction activities is provided below:

- Prior to excavation commencing the site will be ground surveyed, the excavation footprint marked out and a 1 m contour plan developed.
- The topsoil/overburden will be stripped and used to construct earthen bunds using a loader.
- An excavator or front-end loader will be used to dig the sand and transport it to a stockpile.
- The sand will then be picked up by a loader and loaded to trucks for transport.
- All static and other equipment, will be located on the floor of the quarry to provide visual and acoustic screening.
- Excavation will commence in the south of the quarry initially moving north before returning to the east to complete extraction works. The face and walls of the pit will act as noise barriers.
- Crushing and screening of material may be required. Where crushing and screening is required noise bunds will be constructed to ensure compliance with the noise regulations.
- Upon completion of each section of quarry, the section will be reformed and back filled using a combination of equipment such as a tracked bobcat, excavator and front end loader, where subgrade material is available, to achieve the proposed final contours.
- At the end of excavation, the noise bunds will be removed, and the floor of the quarry will be deep ripped, covered by overburden and topsoil, and rehabilitated to a constructed soil.





3.1.1 Final Contours

The final surface contours of the quarry will be approximately 30 m AHD which is consistent with the adjoining land.

Slopes of the batters at the end of excavation will be retained at 1:4 vertical to horizontal (refer to **Appendix C**).

3.1.2 Water Usage

Water is only required for dust suppression within the quarry and the access road. Water will be sourced either onsite or nearby. Should an onsite source be required, a DWER licence will be obtained for the extraction of water.





4 POTENTIAL IMPACTS

4.1 Dust Sources

The proposed extraction activities will involve the disturbance of large quantities of soil and earthen material. Specifically, this may include the following activities:

- Earthworks during extraction activities;
- Topsoil stripping;
- Loading and transportation of material;
- Screening of material;
- Vehicle movement within the site; and
- Wind erosion of exposed surfaces.

These activities have the potential to generate dust that, if not adequately controlled, can cause nuisance and safety risks. In-pit operations tend to generate less dust than surrounding activities due to the reduced airflow within the pit. The removal and replacement of topsoil material has the highest risk associated with dust generation due to the large volumes of material involved and generally lower levels of soil moisture.

4.2 Risk Assessment

In accordance with the DWER's "A guideline for managing the impacts of dust and associated contaminants from land development sites, contaminated sites remediation and other related activities", a risk assessment for dust emissions has been prepared (DWER 2021).

For a site that is generating uncontaminated dust, such as extractive industry sites, the site classification chart in Appendix 1 of the DWER guideline can be used for assessing the site risk. Appendix 1 also details the provisions and contingency arrangements for dust management which apply to each site classification score.

The site classification assessment is provided below.

Part A. Nature of site

Item	Score Options				
1.Nuisance potential of soil when disturbed	Very low - 1	Low – 2 Material is of coarse composition	Medium - 4	High - 6	2
2. Topography and protection provided by undisturbed vegetation	Sheltered and screened - 1	Medium screening – 6 Screening provided by stabilised bunds and roadside vegetation	Little screening – 12	Exposed and wind prone - 18	6





3. Area of site disturbed by the works	Less than 1ha - 1	Between 1 and 5ha – 3 Excavation will occur in stages less than 2 ha.	Between 5 and 10ha – 6	More than 10ha - 9	3
4. Type of work being done	Roads and trenches - 1	Roads, drains and medium deep sewers - 3	Roads, drains, sewers and partial earthworks - 6	Bulk earthworks – 9 Sand extraction	9
Total score for Part A	l l				20

Part B. Proximity of site to other land uses

ltem	Score Options				
1.Distance of other land uses from site	More than 1km - 1	Between 1km and 500m – 6	Between 100m and 500m - 12	Less than 100m - 18	12
2. Affect of prevailing wind direction (easterly) on other land uses	Not affected - 1	Isolated land uses affected by one wind direction – 6	Dense land uses affected by one wind direction – 9	Dense/sensitive land uses highly affected by prevailing winds - 12	6
Total score for Part A				18	

Site Classification Score (A x B) = 360

Classification 2 (score between 200 and 399, considered <u>Low risk</u>). The provisions, contingency arrangements and monitoring requirements as specified by the DWER (2011) associated with a Classification 2 proposal are provided below.

Provisions:

The developer shall supply a contingency plan to the local government, which shall detail the activities should dust impacts occur.

Contingency arrangements:

If required, include an allowance for water-cart operation, wind fencing and surface stabilisation during the construction period for the purposes of dust suppression.

All areas of disturbed land should be stabilised to ensure that the disturbed area exposed at any time is kept to a practical minimum.

Monitoring requirements:

Complaints management system in place.

Notice to be erected at the site providing contact details of the person to be contacted.





4.3 Management Measures

While the potential impacts to amenity from dust emissions are considered low, standard dust suppression measures will be implemented during operation activities, as provided within **Table 2**.





Table 2. Dust management measures.

Legislation and Key Standards

Environmental Protection Act 1986 (EP Act)

A guideline for managing the impacts of dust and associated contaminants from land development sites, contaminated sites remediation and other related activities (DEC 2011)

Objectives

- Minimise dust lift during all activities.
- No adverse dust impacts to sensitive receptors from the quarry operations.

Targets

- No visible dust beyond the property boundary.
- No dust complaints.

Management Actions					
Description	Responsibility	Timing			
Notice to be erected at the site, providing contact details of the person to be contacted regarding the works. This person will also be available outside of operational hours to address any complaints.		Prior to extraction			
 Induction for all employees will include information on: Potential sources of dust Dust Management Plan Speed limits onsite and staying on designated roads Reporting procedure for dust issues 	Site Manager	Prior to extraction			
 Topsoil stripping shall <u>not</u> occur during the following conditions: Winds in excess of 30 km/hr; 	Site Manager	Topsoil stripping and bund construction			





Areas of land cleared and the period of time they remain cleared are to be kept to a minimum.	Site Manager	At all times
Water trucks are to water down unsealed roads during operation to reduce dust lift.	Site Manager	As required
Stockpiles, will be limited to 3 m in height.	Machine Operator	At all times
Temporary stockpiles and exposed areas will be watered and stabilised as required. Stabilisation techniques that will be considered depending on environmental conditions will include hydro-mulching.	Site Manager	As required
Transport of dust-prone material will be via covered trucks or dampened prior to transport to prevent dust lift during transport.	Drivers	During soil transport activities
Water trucks are to be available at all times during quarry activities to water the site on observation of dust lift.	Site Manager	As required
Vehicle speeds will be restricted to no more than 30km/hr on the site to minimize dust lift off.	Drivers	At all times
Wind fencing and soil stabilisation equipment will be available for commissioning if required.	Site Manager	As required
 Maintain a complaints register (refer to Appendix D). A Complaints Register will be established for the site to record the following information: Date, time, location and nature of the exceedance. Identify the cause (or likely cause) of the exceedance and responsible parties. Identify the activities that were occurring at the time of the non-compliance. Determine the activities that were most likely contributing to the non-compliance. Describe what action has been taken to date. Describe the proposed measures to address the exceedance. 	Site Manager	As required





Monitoring					
Description	Parameter	Responsibility	Frequency		
Visual monitoring of dust will be ongoing throughout the day during operations. All monitoring is to be maintained on a logging sheet for reference and proof of compliance.	Dust lift and signs of dust deposition near property boundary. Evidence of no visible dust crossing the site boundary will be used as the visual monitoring criteria for compliance.	Site Manager	Continuous		
Contingency and Corrective Actions					
Incident or Consequence	Corrective Action	Responsibility			
Observation of excessive dust lift onsite	Report and investigate as incident.	Site Manager			
	Halt work within proximity of the area until cause of dust is addressed.	Site Manager			
	Increase dust mitigation measures (e.g. additional watering of exposed areas).	Site Manager			
Complaint received	Report and investigate as incident. To determine the validity of the complaint, the wind direction, wind speed and activities being undertaken on site at the time of the complaint will be established.	Site Manager			
	If required, halt work until cause of dust is addressed. Site Manager				
	If the complaint is verified as being due to a site source, remedial action will be undertaken within 2 hours. The Shire will be advised of all complaints as soon as they are received. If a complaint cannot be resolved within the 2 hour response period, it may be necessary to cease operations.	Site Manger			
	Review dust management procedures and adjust if deemed necessary.	Site Manager			





REFERENCES

Accendo Australia (2024). Works and Excavation. Plan, Lot 22 (9730) Caves Road, Hamelin Bay. Busselton, WA.

Barnesby, B.A. and Proulx-Nixon, M.E. (2000). *Land resources from Harvey to Capel on the Swan Coastal Plain, Western Australia - Sheets 1 and 2.* Land Resources Maps No. 23/1 and 23/2. Agriculture Western Australia.

Churchward, H.M. and McArthur, W.M. (1978). Landforms and soils of the Darling System, Western Australia. In 'Atlas of Natural Resources, Darling System, Western Australia'. Department of Conservation and Environment, Western Australia.

Department of Primary Industries and Regional Development (DPRD) (2019). *Interpolated contours lines at 2 metre intervals database*. Accessed August 2021.

Environmental Protection Authority (EPA) (2005). Guidance for the Assessment of Environmental Factors.

Environmental Protection Authority (EPA) (2006). *Guidance Statement No.10 for the Assessment of Environmental Factors (in accordance with the EP Act 1986: Levels of Assessment for Proposals Affecting Natural Areas Within the System 6 Region and Swan Coastal Plain Portion of the System 1 Region.*

Environmental Protection Authority (EPA) (2009). *South West Regional Ecological Linkages*. Bulletin No 8. Retrieved from: http://epa.wa.gov.au/EPADocLib/3040_SWREL_EPB821009.pdf

Geological Survey of Western Australia (1978). *Geology and mineral resources of Western Australia, memoir 3*. Geological Survey of Western Australia, Perth, WA.

Heddle, E.M., Loneragan, O.W. and Havel, J.J. (1980). *Darling Systems – Vegetation Complexes, In: Atlas of Natural Resources Darling System*, Western Australia, Department of Conservation and Environment, Perth.

Molly, S., Wood, J. Hall, S., Wallrodt, S. & Whisson, G. (2009). *South West Regional Ecological Linkages Technical Report*. Available from: http://walga.asn.au/AboutWALGA/Policy/SouthWestBiodiversityProject/SouthWestRegionalEcologicalLinkagesTechnicalReport.aspx

Semeniuk, C. A. & Semeniuk, V. (1995). *A geomorphic approach to global classification for inland wetlands*. Vegetation, 118, 103-124.

Thackway, R, and Cresswell, ID, (Eds) (1995). *An Interim Biogeographic Regionalisation for Australia: a framework for establishing the national system of reserves*, Version 4.0. Australian Nature Conservation Agency, Canberra.

Tille, P (2006). Soil-Landscape Zones of the WA Rangelands and Interior.

Western Australian Planning Commission (WAPC) (2007). *Planning Bulletin No. 64: Acid Sulfate Soils*, Western Australian Planning Commission, Western Australia.





Dust Management Plan Lot 22 Caves Road, Hamelin Bay

FIGURES









Dust Management Plan Lot 22 Caves Road, Hamelin Bay

APPENDIX A – EXCAVATION WORKS PLAN





Excavation Works Plan Lot 22 (9730) Caves Road, Hamelin Bay

LEGEND
Subject Site
Extractive Industry Licence Area (14ha)
Existing Contours / Survey (1m)
Existing Contours / Survey (5m)
Maximum Groundwater Level Contours (1m) (WML)
Groundwater Monitoring Bore Locations (WML July 2024)
———— Existing Lot Boundary
●● ● Existing Power Infrastructure
Proposed Stage Boundary (2ha)
Proposed Internal Haulage Route
Planned Building Envelopes (Lot 21 Caves Road LDP 2023)





Level 18, 191 St Georges Terrace, Perth Western A PO Box 7375 Cloisters Square, Perth Western Aus T. +61 8 9289 8300 | E. hello@elementwa.com.au



Dust Management Plan Lot 22 Caves Road, Hamelin Bay

APPENDIX B – WIND ROSES



Rose of Wind direction versus Wind speed in km/h (01 Jan 1907 to 31 Jul 2019)

Custom times selected, refer to attached note for details

CAPE LEEUWIN

Site No: 009518 • Opened Jan 1897 • Still Open • Latitude: -34.3728° • Longitude: 115.1358° • Elevation 13m

An asterisk (*) indicates that calm is less than 0.5%.

Other important info about this analysis is available in the accompanying notes.







Rose of Wind direction versus Wind speed in km/h (01 Jan 1907 to 31 Jul 2019)

Custom times selected, refer to attached note for details



Site No: 009518 • Opened Jan 1897 • Still Open • Latitude: -34.3728° • Longitude: 115.1358° • Elevation 13m

An asterisk (*) indicates that calm is less than 0.5%. Other important info about this analysis is available in the accompanying notes.









Dust Management Plan Lot 22 Caves Road, Hamelin Bay

APPENDIX C – POST EXTRACTION PLAN





POST EXTRACTION PLAN Lot 22 (No. 9730) Caves Road, HAMELIN BAY

Plan No.	24210-01	BUNBURY OFFICE:	COPYRIGHT:
Date	27/06/24	21 Spencer Street, BUNBURY WA 6230	This document is and shall property of HARLEY DYKSTF The document may only be
Drawn	JW	T: 08 9792 6000	purpose for which it was co and in accordance with the
Checked	DJ	E: bunbury@harleydykstra.com.au W: www.harleydykstra.com.au	engagement for the commi Unauthorised use of this de any form whatsover is proh
Revision	С	ALBANY BUNBURY BUSSELTON	I FORRESTDALE
Scale	1.3000@43		

[]
- ' - '
]
—— AE ——
— E —

Extraction Pit	Approx. Volume (BCM)
Total	1,314,489



PLANNING & SURVEY SOLUTIONS



Dust Management Plan Lot 22 Caves Road, Hamelin Bay

APPENDIX D - COMPLAINTS REGISTER





Complaints Register

Ref. No.	Date	Name & Address of Complainant	Time/Date of Complaint	Detail of Complaint	Summary of Actions Taken	Shire Notified	Person Responsible







NOISE MANAGEMENT PLAN

LOT 22 (9730) CAVES ROAD, HAMELIN BAY

August 2024





Telephone +61 418 950 852

info@accendoaustralia.com.au PO Box 5178 West Busselton WA 6280 ABN 11 160 028 642

www.accendoaustralia.com.au

Document Control

Version	Date	Author	Reviewer
V1	20/08/2024	PN	KMT/Element
V2	30/08/2024	PN	KMT
Filename	2449_Lot 22 Caves Rd NMP_v2		

Limitations

This report has been prepared by Accendo Australia Pty Ltd in accordance with the scope limitations provided in this report, or as otherwise agreed, between the Client and Accendo.

This report is strictly limited to the matters stated in it and is not to be read as extending, by implication, to any other matter in connection with the matters addressed in it.

This report has been prepared based upon data and other information provided by the Client and other individuals and organisations, most of which are referred to in the report, which Accendo has not independently verified or checked beyond the agreed scope of work. Accendo does not accept liability in connection with such unverified information.

The conclusions and recommendations in this report are based on assumptions made by Accendo described in this report where and as they are required. Accendo disclaims liability arising from any of the assumptions being incorrect.

The report is based on site specific conditions encountered and information received at the time of preparation of this report or the time that site investigations were undertaken. Accendo disclaims responsibility for any changes that may have occurred after this time.

The preparation of this report has been undertaken and performed in a professional manner, in consideration of the scope of services and in accordance with environmental consulting practices. No other warranty is made.



CONTENTS

1	INTRODUCTION
1.1	BACKGROUND4
1.2	PURPOSE AND SCOPE4
2	EXISTING ENVIRONMENT
2.1	LAND USE
2.2	TOPOGRAPHY AND SOILS
2.3	CLIMATE5
3	EXTRACTION ACTIVITIES6
3.1	OPERATIONAL WORKS
3.1	1.1 Final Contours
3.1	1.2 Rehabilitation
3.2	PROPOSED OPERATING TIMES
3.3	EQUIPMENT
4	NOISE IMPACTS AND MANAGEMENT9
4.1	SENSITIVE RECEPTORS9
4.2	NOISE GENERATING ACTIVITIES9
4.3	NOISE MANAGEMENT MEASURES
REFER	RENCES 14
FIGU	RES 15
APPE	NDIX A – EXCAVATION WORKS PLAN 16
APPE	NDIX B – POST EXTRACTION PLAN 17
APPE	NDIX C – ACOUSTIC ASSESSMENT 18
APPE	NDIX D - COMPLAINTS REGISTER 19

TABLES

Table 1. Equipment	7
Table 2. Residential dwellings within 500m of the subject site	9
Table 3. Noise generating activities	10
Table 4. Management actions for noise	11





Noise Management Plan Lot 22 Caves Rd, Hamelin Bay

FIGURES

Figure 1. Regional Location of the Subject Site





1 INTRODUCTION

1.1 Background

McDougall Quarries Pty Ltd (the applicant) is proposing to extract lime sand and limestone from a 14 hectare (ha) area within Lot 22 (HSE 9730) Caves Road, Hamelin Bay (herein referred to as the subject site) (refer to **Figure 1** and **Appendix A**).

The available volume of sand (*insitu* volume of approximately 1,314,489 m³) is to be extracted, commencing in the south and moving in a northerly direction before finishing in a stage along the east of the subject site (refer to **Appendix A**).

The post extraction landform will be designed with minimum batters of 1:4.

1.2 Purpose and Scope

This Noise Management Plan (NMP) has been prepared to fulfil the relevant requirements provided within the Shire of Augusta-Margaret River's (the Shire) *Local Planning Scheme No. 1* and the Shire's *Extractive Industries Policy 3.* It is intended to provide the Shire, the public and relevant government agencies with an understanding of the proposal and the environmental strategies and commitments proposed to address noise emissions associated with the proposed land use. This document has been prepared to support and should be read in conjunction with, the *Environmental Management Plan* prepared by Accendo Australia (2024) for sand and limestone extraction within the subject site.

The Plan will describe the proposed management measures necessary to ensure noise impacts on surrounding receptors will be managed in accordance with best practice and the *Environmental Protection* (*Noise*) *Regulations 1997*.





2 EXISTING ENVIRONMENT

2.1 Land Use

The subject site is zoned 'General Agriculture' pursuant to the Shire's *Local Planning Scheme No.* 1 and has previously been used for agriculture.

The surrounding properties are zoned 'Rural Residential' to the north, 'National Park and Nature Reserve' to the west and south and a mixture of 'General Agriculture', 'Priority Agriculture' and 'Landscape Amenity' to the east pursuant to the Shire *Local Planning Scheme No. 1*.

2.2 Topography and Soils

The current topography of the subject site can be described as variable with the elevation ranging from 30 m Australian Height Datum (AHD) through the eastern portion of the subject site to approximately 40m AHD in the west. Elevated areas are located throughout the subject site and range in elevation from approximately 45 m AHD to 60 m AHD (refer to **Appendix A**).

The subject site is located within the Leeuwin Zone landform within the Gracetown Ridge systems consisting of *"lateritic plateau containing sandy gravel, loamy gravel and grey sandy duplex"* and *"a limestone ridge, in the coastal edge of the Leeuwin Zone containing yellow deep sand and red deep sand",* respectively. (Tille 2006).

The subject site is located within the following sub-systems:

- Kilcarnup rocky dunes phase Low to steep dunes (gradients 5-10%) not exposed to prevailing wines. Dark calcareous sands containing limestone rubble.
- Kilcarnup dunes (organic) phase Steep dunes (gradients usually in excess of 20%) not exposed to prevailing winds. Deep pale calcareous sands with brown topsoil.

2.3 Climate

The climate of the locality is classified as Mediterranean with warm to hot summers and cool wet winters.

The closest weather recording station is Cape Leeuwin (Station 9518). Temperatures are highest on average in February, at approximately 23.4°C. August has the lowest average temperature of the year of 11.3°C.

Rainfall for the area is approximately 950 mm per annum with approximately 88% of the rain falling during the winter months, April to October inclusive. Evaporation generally exceeds rainfall from October to March.

During the summer months the dominant wind in the mornings is from the south-east at 18-26 kms, swinging to the south-west at 37-46 kms in the afternoon. During winter, the winds are most commonly 18-26 kms with no dominant prevailing direction. During storms winds from the west and north-west can reach 74 kms (BoM 2020).





3 EXTRACTION ACTIVITIES

The lime sand and limestone quarry will cover an area of approximately 14 ha, with a current maximum elevation ranging from 30 m AHD to 60 m AHD. It will be excavated to an elevation of 30 m AHD commencing in the south of the subject site and heading north. Extraction activities will be divided into seven stages, of 2.0 ha in size (refer to **Appendix A**).

It is estimated that the total maximum volume of material to be removed will be approximately 1,314,489 m³. Over a ten year period, a maximum of approximately 131,449 m³ will be excavated each year, depending on supply and demand.

Earthen bunds for noise mitigation will be constructed with topsoil and overburden that will be stripped from the extraction footprint and other areas within the premise boundary. Construction of the bunds will be undertaken with an excavator and loader.

The planned end use of the quarry is to restore a natural soil profile and return the extraction area to pasture, ensuring that there is no net loss of agricultural land.

3.1 Operational Works

Using a loader, the topsoil (where available) will be stripped and placed in stockpiles. Overburden, if present, will be removed using a dump truck and stockpiled to a convenient location within each extraction stage for operations. Topsoil stockpiles will be less than 2 m high with a batter no greater than 1:3.

In order to comply with noise regulations, surface works with the dozer must commence from the western most point and clear a sufficient area on the western side of Stage 1 to reach the material. Once a sufficient depth (5-6m) is achieved within Stage 1, progression of the pit through to Stage 2 can continue with the use of the dozer (Herring Storer Acoustics, 2024).

The material will be excavated by an excavator, bulldozer or loader to a stockpile or loaded directly to waiting trucks for transport. A summary of the proposed extraction activities is provided below:

- Prior to excavation commencing the site will be ground surveyed, the excavation footprint marked out and a 1 m contour plan developed.
- The topsoil/overburden will be stripped and used to construct earthen bunds using a loader.
- An excavator or front-end loader will be used to dig the sand and transport it to a stockpile.
- The sand will then be picked up by a loader and loaded to trucks for transport.
- All static and other equipment, will be located on the floor of the quarry to provide visual and acoustic screening.
- Excavation will commence in the south of the quarry initially moving north before returning to the east to complete extraction works. The face and walls of the pit will act as noise barriers.
- Crushing and screening of material may be required. Where crushing and screening is required noise bunds will be constructed to ensure compliance with the noise regulations.
- Upon completion of each section of quarry, the section will be reformed and back filled using a combination of equipment such as a tracked bobcat, excavator and front end loader, where subgrade material is available, to achieve the proposed final contours.
- At the end of excavation, the noise bunds will be removed, and the floor of the quarry will be deep ripped, covered by overburden and topsoil, and rehabilitated to a constructed soil.





3.1.1 Final Contours

The final surface contours of the quarry will be approximately 30 m AHD which is consistent with the adjoining land.

Slopes of the batters at the end of excavation will be retained at 1:4 vertical to horizontal (refer to **Appendix E**).

3.1.2 Rehabilitation

During operations, quarrying and rehabilitation of the extraction area will be undertaken progressively. Following quarrying of each cell, rehabilitation will be undertaken.

Upon completion of each cell, the following broad completion criteria will be achieved:

- A self-sustaining cover of pasture;
- Weed levels that are not likely to impact on the viability of the reconstructed soils; and
- A safe and stable landform suitable for the proposed future land use which will be productive, grazing pasturelands.

Rehabilitation is discussed in further detail in the *Rehabilitation Management Plan* prepared by Accendo Australia (2024).

3.2 Proposed Operating Times

Typical operating hours for quarries will be adopted for the subject site which involves 7am to 5pm each Monday to Friday and Saturdays 7am to 1pm, excluding public holidays. The subject site will be worked by 2 - 3 persons, depending on market demand.

3.3 Equipment

All operational equipment will work on the quarry floor to provide maximum sound and visual screening. All equipment and infrastructure will be fully portable to facilitate movement throughout the site required for staged quarrying operations. The site will be secured by locked gates when it is not being actively worked. The boundary fencing will be maintained to prevent inadvertent and unauthorised entry.

Equipment and facilities that may be used onsite are provided in the Table below.

Equipment	Description
Site office and/or containers	May be required for the management and security of small items.
Toilet	A portable toilet may be required on site.
Water tanker	Used for dust suppression on the access roads and working floors when required.
Bulldozer	Topsoil will be stripped using a bulldozer. Bulldozers will also be used for the movement of material and loading trucks.
Front End Loader	Loaders will be used for the movement of material and loading road trucks.
Track Loader	Track loaders will be used for the movement of material, loading road trucks and in rehabilitation.
Excavator	An excavator may be used for the removal of material.

Table 2. Equipment.





Noise Management Plan Lot 22 Caves Rd, Hamelin Bay

Equipment	Description
Mobile crushing and screening plant	Mobile crushing and screening plant (licensed by DWER) will be utilised for the processing of material. Mobile screening and crushing plants are to be used for the preparation of various grades of lime sand and limestone.
Fuel storage	No fuel will be stored onsite.
Light vehicles	Access to and around the site.
Tip truck	Removal of lime sand and limestone from site.





4 NOISE IMPACTS AND MANAGEMENT

4.1 Sensitive Receptors

The subject site has been designed to maximise setbacks to the closest sensitive receptors. This has involved extensive analysis of the local landform, environmental characteristics, land uses and location of sensitive receptors. Consultation with all sensitive receptors has also been undertaken by the Proponent.

The Environmental Protection Authority's (EPA) *Guidance for the Assessment of Environmental Factors* (June 2005) provides generic separation distances to assist in the determination of suitable buffers where industry may have the potential to affect the amenity of a sensitive land use. In particular, for extractive industries, a buffer distance of 300 m to 500 m is recommended from sensitive land uses. A conservative buffer of 500 m to sensitive receptors has been adopted for this proposal given that onsite screening and crushing is proposed.

The closest residential dwellings to the subject site are provided below and shown in Appendix A.

Table 2. Residential dwellings within 500 m of the subject site

Address	Distance to subject site (m)
Lot 31 (18) Grosse Road	400 m
Lot 9001 (Hamelin Ridge Estate)	>415 m
Lot 28 (9789) Caves Road	526 m

The closest residential dwelling to the subject site is located approximately 400 m to the north east of the subject site. Hamelin Ridge Estate, where most dwellings are yet to be constructed, is located to the north of the subject site, at distances greater than 415 m from the boundary. An additional residential dwelling is located to the east of the subject site at a distance greater than 500 m away.

4.2 Noise Generating Activities

The project works will involve the use of machinery and equipment that will generate noise during operation. Sources of noise from the subject site will include:

- Machinery noise from equipment use.
- Noise from safety equipment (beepers on machinery).
- Noise from trucks departing the site.

Reversing alarms can represent significant nuisance noise to sensitive receptors. There are a number of alternatives to alarms that maintain a safe work environment and also comply with occupational health and safety legislation. Reversing alarms alert pedestrians when a vehicle is moving, however, given that no pedestrians will be onsite (private property), the applicant has committed to using flashing lights or a broadband alarm system as an alternative. The sound of a broadband alarm is much less intrusive by nature than the sound of a tonal alarm and tends to be masked by the background noise at a lesser distance. This will eliminate/reduce noise emissions associated with reversing alarms.

Extraction activities will only be undertaken during standard hours of operation (in accordance with the conditions of the Extractive Industry Licence). A summary of potential noise generating activities is presented in **Table 3**.




Noise Management Plan Lot 22 Caves Rd, Hamelin Bay

Table 3. Noise generating activities.

Activity	Duration	Equipment to be used	Sound pressure Level (dB(A))	Comments
Toncoil stripping	2 waake par waar	CAT D9 Dozer	113	Initial impact to closest resident which will reduce as stockpiles increase.
Topsoil stripping	3 weeks per year	CAT 966 FEL or similar	105	Initial impact to closest resident which will reduce as stockpiles increase.
Screening and stockpiling of sand		CAT 966 FEL or similar	105	Noise will be muffled by stockpiles and site topography
	6 weeks per year	Sand Screen	101	Noise will be muffled by stockpiles
		CAT 330 Excavator or similar	105	Noise will be muffled by stockpiles
Crushing and	6 weeks per year	Mobile Crusher	113	Noise will be muffled by noise bunds
stockpiling of limestone		PC 330 Excavator or similar	100	Noise will be muffled by noise bunds
Loading of trucks from stockpiles	A maximum of 10 years with 15 loads per day, dependent on demand.	CAT 966 FEL or similar	105	Noise will be muffled by stockpiles, vehicles are new and well maintained.
Rehabilitation of completed stages Completed stages Completed applicable.		CAT 966 FEL or similar	105	Limited period of moderate noise levels, indistinguishable from excavation noise when undertaken concurrently.

Noise levels have been obtained from the *Acoustic Assessment* (Herring Storer Acoustics 2024) prepared for Lot 22 (9730) Caves Road, Hamelin Bay for the extraction of limestone and sand.

The Acoustic Assessment (Herring Storer Acoustics 2024) (refer to **Appendix C**) demonstrated that noise levels resulting from the extraction, crushing and screening works, and the noise from trucks entering the site, when coupled with the dozer operation (at surface level), are predicted to exceed the assigned level of 45 dB L_{A10} at the closest receptors. To address the noise exceedance, where the pit wall is less than 5 m, it is recommended to construct an earthen bund in proximity to the plant to form a barrier. Additionally, the dozer is required to operate from the western most point of any cells and clear a sufficient area on the western side of the stage to reach the material. Works must remain within the active area for the dozer (refer to Figure 2.1 of **Appendix C**) until a sufficient depth (5-6 m) is achieved. Progression of the pit through to Stage 2 can then continue with the use of the dozer.

Provided the recommended noise mitigation measures are implemented, it is concluded that compliance with the applicable assigned noise level can be achieved at all noise sensitive receptors during the specified working hours.





4.3 Noise Management Measures

The proponent will ensure that noise emissions comply with the requirements of the *Environmental Protection (Noise) Regulations 1997* at all times. In addition, the management measures prescribed within **Table 4** will be implemented to reduce noise emissions as far as practicable.





Table 4. Management actions for noise.

Item	Action	Trigger/Timing	Responsibility
Inducti	ions		
1	As part of site inductions, employees, contractors and visitors to the site are reminded of their responsibility to undertake work activities in an environmentally sensitive manner, including minimising noise while on site, or entering and leaving the site.	Ongoing	Site Manager
Plannir	ng Controls		
2	 <u>Daily Planning</u> The use of significant noise generating equipment or activities simultaneously is avoided. The noisiest activities are scheduled to the least sensitive times of the day. 	Where possible	Site Manager
3	Regular review of meteorological data, specifically wind speed and direction, to guide decisions on quarrying activities.	As required, with consideration to the intensity of activities onsite and the prevailing weather conditions	Site Manager
Operat	ional Controls		
4	 Equipment and Machinery Use machinery and equipment with minimal noise output levels. Ensure all machinery is regularly serviced as per the equipment's maintenance schedule to minimise noise generation. Where appropriate, all machinery and equipment will be shut off when not in use. Use flashing lights/broadband alarms instead of tonal reversing alarms on excavators/loaders. Apply speed restrictions (20 km/hr within site) and a ban on exhaust braking. Dozer works at surface level will commence within the western most point of the subject site and remain within the 'Dozer surface only' area as specified within Figure 2.1 of Appendix C. 	Continuous	All employees & contractors
5	 Earth bunds Overburden and topsoil will be used to form perimeter bunds to assist with noise screening. 	Prior to quarrying	Site Manager





Item	Action	Trigger/Timing	Responsibility
Induct	ions		
	• Earth bunds around the plant, as specified within Figure 4.1 of Appendix C will be constructed to reduce noise impacts to nearby residents.		
Comple	aints Management		
6	Erect on-site signage directing public to make complaints to the relevant person.	Prior to quarrying	Site Manager
7	 Maintain a complaints register (refer to Appendix D). A Complaints Register will be established for the site to record the following information: Date, time, location and nature of the exceedance. Identify the cause (or likely cause) of the exceedance and responsible parties. Identify the activities that were occurring at the time of the non-compliance. Determine the activities that were most likely contributing to the non-compliance. Describe what action has been taken to date. Describe the proposed measures to address the exceedance. If the complaint is verified as being due to a site source, remedial action will be undertaken within 2 hours. The Shire of Augusta Margaret River will be advised of all complaints as soon as they are received. If a compliant cannot be resolved within the 2 hour response period, it may be necessary to cease operations. 	Upon receiving complaint	Site Manager





REFERENCES

Beard J. S. (1990). Plant life of Western Australia, Kangaroo Press, Perth.

Barnesby, B.A. and Proulx-Nixon, M.E. (2000). *Land resources from Harvey to Capel on the Swan Coastal Plain, Western Australia - Sheets 1 and 2.* Land Resources Maps No. 23/1 and 23/2. Agriculture Western Australia.

Churchward, H.M. and McArthur, W.M. (1978). Landforms and soils of the Darling System, Western Australia. In 'Atlas of Natural Resources, Darling System, Western Australia'. Department of Conservation and Environment, Western Australia.

Department of Parks and Wildlife (DBCA) (2004). Geomorphic Wetlands of the Swan Coastal Plain dataset.

Department of Water (DoW) (2014). South West Region Guideline, Water resource considerations for extractive industries. DoW, Perth WA.

Environmental Protection Authority (EPA) (2006). *Guidance Statement No.10 for the Assessment of Environmental Factors (in accordance with the EP Act 1986: Levels of Assessment for Proposals Affecting Natural Areas Within the System 6 Region and Swan Coastal Plain Portion of the System 1 Region.*

Environmental Protection Authority (EPA) (2009). *South West Regional Ecological Linkages*. Bulletin No 8. Retrieved from: http://epa.wa.gov.au/EPADocLib/3040_SWREL_EPB821009.pdf

Geological Survey of Western Australia (1978). *Geology and mineral resources of Western Australia, memoir 3*. Geological Survey of Western Australia, Perth, WA.

Heddle, E.M., Loneragan, O.W. and Havel, J.J. (1980). *Darling Systems – Vegetation Complexes, In: Atlas of Natural Resources Darling System*, Western Australia, Department of Conservation and Environment, Perth.

Herring Storer Acoustics (2024). *McDougall Quarries Pty Ltd, Extractive Industry, Lot 22 (9730) Caves Road, Hamelin Bay, Acoustic Assessment.* August 2024.

Molly, S., Wood, J. Hall, S., Wallrodt, S. & Whisson, G. (2009). *South West Regional Ecological Linkages Technical Report.* Available from: http://walga.asn.au/AboutWALGA/Policy/SouthWestBiodiversityProject/SouthWestRegionalEcologicalLin kagesTechnicalReport.aspx

Semeniuk, C. A. & Semeniuk, V. (1995). *A geomorphic approach to global classification for inland wetlands*. Vegetation, 118, 103-124.

Thackway, R, and Cresswell, ID, (Eds) (1995). *An Interim Biogeographic Regionalisation for Australia: a framework for establishing the national system of reserves*, Version 4.0. Australian Nature Conservation Agency, Canberra.

Tille, P (2006). Soil-Landscape Zones of the WA Rangelands and Interior.

Western Australian Planning Commission (WAPC) (2007). *Planning Bulletin No. 64: Acid Sulfate Soils*, Western Australian Planning Commission, Western Australia.





Noise Management Plan Lot 22 Caves Rd, Hamelin Bay

FIGURES









Noise Management Plan Lot 22 Caves Rd, Hamelin Bay

APPENDIX A – EXCAVATION WORKS PLAN





Excavation Works Plan Lot 22 (9730) Caves Road, Hamelin Bay

LEGEND
Subject Site
Extractive Industry Licence Area (14ha)
Existing Contours / Survey (1m)
Existing Contours / Survey (5m)
Maximum Groundwater Level Contours (1m) (WML)
Groundwater Monitoring Bore Locations (WML July 2024)
——— Existing Lot Boundary
—●—●E Existing Power Infrastructure
Proposed Stage Boundary (2ha)
Proposed Internal Haulage Route
Planned Building Envelopes (Lot 21 Caves Road LDP 2023)





Level 18, 191 St Georges Terrace, Pertn western A PO Box 7375 Cloisters Square, Perth Western Aus T. +61 8 9289 8300 | E. hello@elementwa.com.au



Noise Management Plan Lot 22 Caves Rd, Hamelin Bay

APPENDIX B – POST EXTRACTION PLAN





POST EXTRACTION PLAN Lot 22 (No. 9730) Caves Road, HAMELIN BAY

Plan No. Date Drawn Checked Revision	24210-01 27/06/24 JW DJ C	BUNBURY OFFICE: 21 Spencer Street, BUNBURY WA 6230 T: 08 9792 6000 E: bunbury@harleydykstra.com.au W: www.harleydykstra.com.au ALBANY BUNBURY BUSSELTOM	COPYRIGHT: This document is and shall remain property of HARLEY DYKSRA. The document may only be used if purpose for which it was commission engagement for the commission unauthorised use of this document any form whatsover is prohibited I FORRESTDALE PE
Scale	1:3000@A3		

C::
23
—— AE ——
— E —

Extractive Industry License (13.99
Toe Line (30m AHD)
Rehabilitated to Pasture
Existing Contours
Post Extraction Contours
Overhead Electricity (DBYD)
Underground Electricity (DBYD)
Telecommunications (DBYD)

Extraction Pit	Approx. Volume (BCM)
Total	1,314,489

Δ



PLANNING & SURVEY SOLUTIONS



Noise Management Plan Lot 22 Caves Rd, Hamelin Bay

APPENDIX C – ACOUSTIC ASSESSMENT







MCDOUGALL QUARRIES PTY LTD

EXTRACTIVE INDUSTRY LOT 22 (9730) CAVES ROAD, HAMELIN BAY

ACOUSTIC ASSESSMENT

AUGUST 2024

OUR REFERENCE: 33157-3-24200





DOCUMENT CONTROL PAGE

ACOUSTIC ASSESSMENT

CAVES ROAD, HAMELIN BAY

Job No: 24200

Document Reference: 33157-3-24200

FOR

MCDOUGALL QUARRIES PTY LTD

		DOCUMENT IN	ORMATION			
Author:	Paul Daly	Paul Daly Checked By: George Watts				
Date of Issue:	9 th August 202	4				
		REVISION H	IISTORY			
Revision	Description			Date	Author	Checked
1	Revised Excava	Revised Excavation Plan			PLD	
2	Client Comme	Client Comments			PLD	
		DOCUMENT DIS	STRIBUTION			
Copy No.	Version No.	Destination			Hard Copy	Electronic Copy
1	3	Element Att: Daniel Lewis Email: <u>daniel.lewis@eleme</u>	entwa.com.au			✓



CONTENTS

1.	INTRODUCTION	1
2.	SUMMARY	2
3.	CRITERIA	3
4.	CALCULATED NOISE LEVELS	5
5.	MONITORED AMBIENT NOISE	7
6.	RESULTS	10
7.	ASSESSMENT	10
8.	CONCLUSION	11

APPENDICIES

- A Site Layout
- B Noise Contours
- C Ambient Noise Monitoring



1. INTRODUCTION

Herring Storer Acoustics have been commissioned by Element on behalf of McDougall Quarries Pty Ltd to undertake an acoustic assessment of noise emissions from the proposed lime sand and limestone extraction operations located at Lot 40 (9730) Caves Road, Hamelin Bay.

The proposed extraction operations will operate from 07:00 - 19:00 Monday to Friday and 07:00 - 13:00 on Saturdays. No operations would occur on Sundays or Public Holidays.

The nearest residential premises are located to the east / northeast of the proposed excavation activities. The most critical in terms of distance from the proposed operations, are approximately 400m from the boundary of the nearest operations. Future residential locations to the north have been noted and also assessed for noise impact.

The main access road is via the east as shown in Figure 1.1, along with the proposed operations.



FIGURE 1.1 – EXTRACTION OPERATIONS

This assessment is provided to support the regulatory approvals processes and demonstrate compliance with the requirements of the *Environmental Protection (Noise) Regulations 1997* can be achieved.

As part of the study, the following was carried out:

- \circ $\;$ $\;$ Identification of individual operations and the associated noise levels.
- Measurement of the existing background noise levels.
- Assess the predicted noise levels at the nearest surrounding highly noise sensitive premises for compliance with the appropriate criteria.
- If exceedances are predicted, comment on possible noise amelioration options for compliance with the appropriate criteria.

For information, a locality plan is shown in Appendix A.

2. SUMMARY

Assessment has been conducted on the proposed limestone and sand extraction operations for Lot 40 (9730) Caves Road, Hamelin Bay.

The facility would only operate during the day period (being Monday to Friday 07:00 to 19:00 hours and 07:00 to 16:00 on Saturdays). Therefore, at the neighbouring residences, the applicable acoustic criteria for this assessment is the assigned L_{A10} day period noise level of 45 dB(A).

Noise received at the nearest residential premises has been determined to be 45 dB(A) for the extraction operations for the highest noise level at any stage of the operations. This can be compared to the applicable assigned noise level criteria of 45 dB(A).

Noise monitoring conducted shows that the ambient noise (background) is generally around 45 to 50 dB(A) during the day. Given this, annoying characteristics such as tonality may be present, hence a +5 dB(A) penalty has been included in the assessable noise level stated above.

Information provided is that the material is understood to be located around 10m deep (from ground level). Therefore, as the pits progress, the bottom of the pit will be such that there is a pit wall (operating face) being maintained between equipment and receivers.

As there is a Cat D9 Dozer to be used in the operations, both this and the crushing plant require noise control to ensure compliance. Predictive noise modelling has been conducted where the dozer, located at natural surface level commences operations in Stage 1. The dozer is required to operate from the western most point and clear a sufficient area on the western side of Stage 1 to reach the material. Figure 2.1 below details the active area for the dozer for the commencement of works. Once a sufficient depth (5-6m) is achieved within Stage 1, progression of the pit through to Stage 2 can continue with the use of the dozer.

FIGURE 2.1 – DOZER OPERATIONS - SURFACE ONLY

Additionally, the crushing and screening plant require noise control in the form of a barrier. If the plant is located within the pit at a depth of 5m, then this would provide sufficient attenuation. However, at depth less than this a bund is required in close proximity to the plant to form a barrier.

Modelling has assumed the progression of the pit through the numbered stages. Provided the barrier in the form of a pit wall, or bunding to a minimum height of 3m is maintained, noise levels would be compliant.

Given these operating parameters, noise levels received at the nearest premises has been calculated to comply with the *Environmental Protection (Noise) Regulations 1997* for the operating times as outlined in this assessment.

3. <u>CRITERIA</u>

The allowable noise level for noise sensitive premises in the vicinity of the proposed site is prescribed by the *Environmental Protection (Noise) Regulations 1997*. Regulations 7 and 8 stipulate maximum allowable external noise levels or assigned noise levels that can be received at a premise from another premises. For residential premises, this noise level is determined by the calculation of an influencing factor, which is then added to the base levels shown below. The influencing factor is calculated for the usage of land within two circles, having radii of 100m and 450m from the premises of concern. The base noise levels for residential premises are listed in Table 3.1.

Premises Receiving	Time of Day	Assigned Level (dB)			
Noise	Time of Day	L _{A 10}	L _{A 1}	L _{A max}	
Noise sensitive premises	0700 - 1900 hours Monday to Saturday (Day)	45 + IF	55 + IF	65 + IF	
	0900 - 1900 hours Sunday and Public Holidays (Sunday / Public Holiday Day Period)	40 + IF	50 + IF	65 + IF	
	1900 - 2200 hours all days (Evening)	40 + IF	50 + IF	55 + IF	
	2200 hours on any day to 0700 hours Monday to Saturday and 0900 hours Sunday and Public Holidays (Night)	35 + IF	45 + IF	55 + IF	
Note: L _{A10} is the noise	e level exceeded for 10% of the time.				

TABLE 3.1 - BASELINE ASSIGNED OUTDOOR NOISE LEVEL

 L_{A10} is the noise level exceeded for 10% of the time L_{A1} is the noise level exceeded for 1% of the time.
 L_{Amax} is the maximum noise level.
 IF is the influencing factor.

It is a requirement that received noise be free of annoying characteristics (tonality, modulation and impulsiveness), defined below as per Regulation 9.

"impulsiveness"	means betwee a single	a variation in the emission of a noise where the difference L_{Apeak} and $L_{Amax Slow}$ is more than 15 dB when determined for e representative event;
"modulation"	means	a variation in the emission of noise that –
	(a)	is more than 3dB $L_{A\ Fast}$ or is more than 3 dB $L_{A\ Fast}$ in any one-third octave band;
	(b)	is present for more at least 10% of the representative assessment period; and
	(c)	is regular, cyclic and audible;

"tonality" means the presence in the noise emission of tonal characteristics where the difference between –

- (a) the A-weighted sound pressure level in any one-third octave band; and
- (b) the arithmetic average of the A-weighted sound pressure levels in the 2 adjacent one-third octave bands,

is greater than 3 dB when the sound pressure levels are determined as $L_{Aeq,T}$ levels where the time period T is greater than 10% of the representative assessment period, or greater than 8 dB at any time when the sound pressure levels are determined as $L_{A \text{ slow}}$ levels.

The nearest potential noise sensitive premises to the proposed development have been identified using the area map in Figure 3.1. It is understood that there is the potential for development to the north of the extractive works, hence, there future residential premises have been assessed, noted at R3.

The usage of the surrounding land use varies from rural (with residential premises) and other extractive industries. Therefore, the assigned noise levels for operational times are as noted in Table 3.2.

FIGURE 3.1 – RECEIVER LOCATION MAP

TABLE 3.2 – ASSIGNED NOISE LEVELS

Dromises Dessiving Noise		Time of Davi	Assi	Assigned Level (dB)		
Premises Receiving Noise	IF OD	Time of Day	L _{A 10}	L _{A max}		
Possivors P1 to P2	0	0700 - 1900 hours	15	55	65	
Receivers KI to KS	0	Monday to Saturday (Day)	45			

4. <u>CALCULATED NOISE LEVELS</u>

Noise immissions¹ at the nearest neighbouring residential premises, due to noise associated with the proposed operations, were modelled with the computer programme SoundPlan using Concawe algorithms. Sound power levels used for the calculations are based on measured sound pressure levels of similar equipment proposed for use on site.

The modelling of noise levels has been based on noise sources and sound power levels shown in Table 4.1.

Source Name	Quantity	SWL dB(A)
Loaders (Cat 966 or similar)	1	105
Screening Plant (McCloskey S190 Screener or Similar)	1	101
Crushing Plant (Terex J1175)	1	113
Semi- Tipper Truck	1	98
Excavator (PC330 or similar)	1	100
Dozer (CAT D9)	1	113

TABLE 4.1 - SOUN	D POWER LEVEL	- NOISE SOURCES	dB(A)
------------------	---------------	-----------------	-------

Note: The above equipment models have been used to provide an indication of the size. Other models may be used although these have been assumed to have a similar sound power level.

Based on noise emissions from the above equipment, an overall operating scenario has been developed. Figure 4.1 details the source locations assumed in the predictive modelling along with the proposed development of the pit.

FIGURE 4.1 – SOURCE LOCATION AND PIT PROGRESSION

¹ Immissions – noise received at a source

² Emissions – noise emanating from a source and / or location

Based on the above, various operating scenarios have been developed for each stage of the proposal. As the fixed plant, being the loader, crusher and screen will generally remain in a static location, this has been modelled for each stage. The truck transporting of material can be within any stage; hence this has been modelled in a separate scenario and included in the overall assessable noise level (added to the fixed plant noise levels). The excavator could operate anywhere within the staged area, whilst the loader would be generally located with the crushing and screen plant, also being available to load out material onto trucks.

It is noted that each stage is assessed individually, with the noise contour plot for the overall noise level being a maximum of each stage (not the cumulative of all stages) for information purposes only.

Information provided is that the material is understood to be located around 10m deep (from ground level). Therefore, as the pits progress, the bottom of the pit will be such that there is a pit wall (operating face) being maintained between equipment and receivers.

As there is a Cat D9 Dozer to be used in the operations, both this and the crushing plant require noise control to ensure compliance. Predictive noise modelling has been conducted where the dozer, located at natural surface level commences operations in Stage 1. The dozer is required to operate from the western most point and clear a sufficient area on the western side of Stage 1 to reach the material. Figure 4.2 details the active area for the dozer for the commencement of works. Once a sufficient depth (5-6m) is achieved within Stage 1, progression of the pit through to stage 2 can continue with the use of the dozer.

FIGURE 4.2 – DOZER OPERATIONS - SURFACE ONLY

Additionally, the crushing and screening plant require noise control in the form of a barrier. If the plant is located within the pit at a depth of 5m, then this would provide sufficient attenuation. However, at depth less than this a bund is required in close proximity to the plant to form a barrier.

Modelling has assumed the progression of the pit through the numbered stages. Provided the barrier, in the form of a pit wall, or bunding to a minimum height of 3m is maintained, noise levels would be compliant.

Therefore, the operating scenarios considered are:

- Scenario 1 Stage 1 Fixed Plant, Mobile Equipment and truck movements
- Scenario 2 Stage 2 Fixed Plant, Mobile Equipment and truck movements
- Scenario 3 Stage 3 Fixed Plant, Mobile Equipment and truck movements
- Scenario 4 Stage 4 Fixed Plant, Mobile Equipment and truck movements
- Scenario 5 Stage 5 Fixed Plant, Mobile Equipment and truck movements
- Scenario 6 Stage 6 Fixed Plant, Mobile Equipment and truck movements
- Scenario 7 Stage 7 Fixed Plant, Mobile Equipment and truck movements

The following input data was used in the calculations:

- a) Provided area plots.
- b) Sound Power Levels listed in Table 4.1.
- c) Ground contours and receiver point provided by client (Appendix A).

Weather conditions for modelling were as stipulated in the Environmental Protection Authority's *"Draft Guidelines on Environmental Noise for Prescribed Premises"* and for the day period are as listed in Table 4.2.

Condition	Day
Temperature	20°C
Relative humidity	50%
Pasquill Stability Class	E
Wind speed	4 m/s*

TABLE 4.2 – WEATHER CONDITIONS

* From sources, towards receivers.

5. MONITORED AMBIENT NOISE

As per the "Draft Guidelines on Environmental Noise for Prescribed Premises" (released in May 2016), continuous noise monitoring has been conducted to establish the ambient noise levels.

The monitoring location was on the southern boundary of the development, nearest to the neighboring residence. Monitoring commenced on the 19th June 2024 and continued through until the 5th July 2024. Figure 5.1 contains a map of the monitoring location, with Figure 5.2 showing pictures of the monitor in situ.

FIGURE 5.1 – MONITORING LOCATION

FIGURE 5.2 – MONITORING PICTURE – IN SITU

Noise monitoring results are summarised graphically below in Figure 5.3, with the full results contained in Appendix C.

FIGURE 5.3 – MONITORED NOISE LEVELS – TOTAL MONITORING PERIOD

During the monitoring period intermittent rainfall occurred. The days (periods) where rainfall impacted noise levels have been discounted from the assessment of ambient noise.

For informational purposes, a summary of the average noise level for each daily regulatory time period is shown in Table 5.1.

Weather data for the monitoring period was sourced via the Bureau of Meteorology web site for the area.

Day / Data	Noise Level	Commonte
Day / Date	Day Period	comments
Wednesday, 19 June 2024	49.5	
Thursday, 20 June 2024	44.5	
Friday, 21 June 2024	55.2	
Saturday, 22 June 2024	63.0	Rainfall
Sunday, 23 June 2024	46.5	Rainfall
Monday, 24 June 2024	27.5	Rainfall
Tuesday, 25 June 2024	25.8	
Wednesday, 26 June 2024	46.3	Rainfall
Thursday, 27 June 2024	46.1	Rainfall
Friday, 28 June 2024	49.9	Rainfall
Saturday, 29 June 2024	46.1	Rainfall
Sunday, 30 June 2024	45.6	
Monday, 1 July 2024	52.9	
Tuesday, 2 July 2024	53.1	Rainfall
Wednesday, 3 July 2024	45.0	
Thursday, 4 July 2024	48.4	
Average (Good Days)	49.9	

TABLE 5.1 – SUMMARY NOISE LEVELS

6. <u>RESULTS</u>

Calculated noise levels associated with the noise emissions from the proposed operations for the assumed scenarios, including bunding to Stages 1 - 3 are summarised below in Table 6.1. Appendix B contains the overall noise contour plots.

Operating Scenario	Description	Calculated Noise Level (L _{A10} dB(A) R1 R2 R3		evel (L _{A10} dB(A))	
				R3	
Scenario 1	Stage 1 Fixed Plant, Mobile equipment and Truck Movement	30	24	30	
Scenario 2	Stage 2 Fixed Plant, Mobile equipment and Truck Movement	33	31	33	
Scenario 3	Stage 3 Fixed Plant, Mobile equipment and Truck Movement	35	33	36	
Scenario 4	Stage 4 Fixed Plant, Mobile equipment and Truck Movement	37	35	36	
Scenario 5	Stage 5 Fixed Plant, Mobile equipment and Truck Movement	37	36	37	
Scenario 6	Stage 6 Fixed Plant, Mobile equipment and Truck Movement	34	29	40	
Scenario 7	Stage 7 Fixed Plant, Mobile equipment and Truck Movement	40	39	37	

TABLE 6.1 – CALCULATED NOISE LEVEL

7. <u>ASSESSMENT</u>

For the day time operations, based on calculated noise levels at the nearest premises, noise levels could be considered as potentially containing tonal characteristics.

Based on the assessable noise levels above, comparison against the relevant assigned noise level is contained in Table 7.1. For the purpose of assessment, the highest noise level received for any stage of the operation has been assessed.

Receiver	Premises Receiving Noise Assessable Noise Level dB(A)	Time of Day	Assigned Level (dB)	Compliance
R1	40[45]	0700 - 1900 hours Monday to Saturday (Day)	45	Complies
R2	39[44]			Complies
R3	40[45]			Complies

TABLE 7.1 – ASSESSMENT OF NOISE LEVELS

[] Denotes penalty for tonality

8. <u>CONCLUSION</u>

Assessment has been conducted on the proposed limestone and sand extraction operations for Lot 40 (9730) Caves Road, Hamelin Bay.

The facility would only operate during the day period (being Monday to Friday 07:00 to 19:00 hours and 07:00 to 13:00 on Saturdays). Therefore, at the neighbouring residences, the applicable acoustic criteria for this assessment is the assigned L_{A10} day period noise level of 45 dB(A).

Noise received at the nearest residential premises has been determined, to be 45 dB(A) for the extraction operations for the highest noise level at any stage of the operations. This can be compared to the applicable assigned noise level criteria of 45 dB(A).

Noise monitoring conducted shows that the ambient noise (background) is generally around 44 dB(A) during the day. Given this, annoying characteristics such as tonality may be present, hence a +5 dB(A) penalty has been included in the assessable noise level stated above.

To ensure the above noise levels are maintained, noise control as outline in this report is required.

Given these operating parameters, noise levels received at the nearest premises has been calculated to comply with the *Environmental Protection (Noise) Regulations 1997* for the operating times as outlined in this assessment.

APPENDIX A LOCATION MAP

Date: 13 Aug 2024 Scale: 1:5000 @ A3 1:2500 @ A1 File: 24-132 EX01B Staff: DL CCG JU Checked: DL Level 18, 191 St Geographic Scale: 1:500 @ Checked: DL Level 18, 191 St Geograp

Level 18, 191 St Georges Terrace, Perb Western Australia 6000. PO Brz 7375 Closters Spain, Perb Western Australia 6050. T. +61 8 9209 8000 | E. helio@elementera.com.az. elementera.com.

Excavation Works Plan Lot 22 (9730) Caves Road, Hamelin Bay

APPENDIX B

Noise Contours



APPENDIX C

Ambient Noise Monitoring

RECEIVED By Shire of Augusta Margaret River 13 September 2024





Noise Management Plan Lot 22 Caves Rd, Hamelin Bay

APPENDIX D - COMPLAINTS REGISTER





Complaints Register

Ref. No.	Date	Name & Address of Complainant	Time/Date of Complaint	Detail of Complaint	Summary of Actions Taken	Shire Notified	Person Responsible

